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Support underprivileged and underserved segments by providing financial and non-
financial services through a socially responsible, sustainable and scalable institution

MISSION

Serving one million households through a range of socially oriented products and 
services by 2016.

VISION

VALUES
1. Client and Human Capital Centric

2. Transparent and Fair Practices

3. Integrated Social Values

4. Responsible and Responsive Services

5. Striving for Excellence









Disciplined approach 
by  each stakeholder 
of the sector will 
certainly be of 
paramount 
importance in the 
financial inclusion 
initiatives of the 
nation

"

"

From the
Desk of
MD & CEO



roll out mobile technology for day to day field operations of 
the company.  The company has already commenced pilot at 
two branches and the year would see all branches operating 
on mobile platform.

With a view to make available other services, besides micro 
credit, to the members of the company, Utkarsh has started 
providing NPS lite services to the members and non members 
of the company.  With success of initial pilot to test the 
processes and understand demand of the product amongst 
target clientele, the company has started rolling out the same 
at various branches in phased manner.  The company expects 
to scale the product significantly during the year 2013-14.

Insurance is another product that company proposes to 
launch during 2013-14.  Currently, the company provides only 
credit shield linked with the loan product.  However, to cater to 
other insurance requirements of the target segment, Utkarsh 
plans to provide insurance products once regulatory approvals 
are received.  The company is in a state of readiness to launch 
insurance product.

One of the most important aspects of the operations of the 
company is quality of processes and resultant quality of 
portfolio.  To this end, company has all mechanisms in place to 
ensure that quality of pre and post disbursement processes 
are maintained with increase in volumes.  Risk and audit 
functions have played important role and would continue to 
do so.

The client remains the central to all activities of the company.  
With a view to understand how well the company is serving 
the clients and where are the gaps to cover, the company is 
undergoing Clients protection principles (CPP) assessment 
through Accion.  The company will ensure that the gaps 
identified are appropriately addressed.  The company has 
already in place sound mechanism for the redressal of clients’ 
grievance with toll free number available to each member of 
the Company, which has been effective in understanding the 
issues and appropriate, timely resolution of the same.

The company continues to enjoy good support from all 
stakeholders, particularly, investors and lenders. Thier support 
has made it possible for us to growth at steady pace.

I take this opportunity to reiterate to each and every person 
who has got associated with Utkarsh in some form or other 
that we will remain committed to high standards of processes, 
disciplined approach, good HR practices, transparency and 
corporate governance norms in all parts of our operations. 

Sincerely yours,

It gives me sense of satisfaction and pride in presenting the 4th 
Annual Report of the company. Satisfaction and pride because 
during three and half years of microfinance operations, the 
company has shown steady progress on all financial and non 
financial parameters and company has established itself as a 
reputed institution in this space.

The whole microfinance sector has gone through the 
consolidation phase and worked very hard to put in place 
norms and structures, so critical and that will ensure smooth 
and balanced growth in years ahead.  

The regulator has been positive towards the sector and has 
provided good regulatory framework for proper functioning of 
the industry.  The approval of microfinance bill which is 
currently under consideration of the parliament and the 
standing committee on Finance, would strengthen the whole 
microfinance program and would cover all the players.  
Allowing distribution of savings and other products to the 
microfinance institutions to support the target households will 
be necessary to fast forward the efforts on financial inclusion 
front. Allowing NBFC MFIs to be become Business 
Correspondents of commercial banks could be first step in this 
direction.

 

Disciplined approach by each stakeholder of the sector will 
certainly be of paramount importance in the financial 
inclusion initiatives of the nation.  The sector has important 
task of reaching out to the most deprived section of the society 
in transparent and consistent manner.

The company has progressed well during the financial year 
2012-13 and details are provided in the subsequent pages.

However, I would like to touch upon the following points. The 
company commenced micro enterprise loan from March 
2012, to cater to the needs of “missing middle”.  The company 
operated from two locations during the year, namely Varanasi 
and Allahabad.  The company sees big funding gap for the 
target segment and plans to expand the MEL operations 
during 2013-14 by opening more branches in the new 
locations. 

The company will continue to put big emphasis on 
development of human resources. Towards this end, the 
training set up of the company was strengthened significantly 
during the year. The training program on soft skills training for 
middle and senior management of the company is being rolled 
out and would focus on development of managerial capability.

We all understand well that Technology will play crucial role in 
days ahead, not only in improving the quality of data and data 
analysis but also efficiency of data flow.  In addition, it would 
significantly contribute in improving cost effectiveness of 
operations.  Towards this end, Utkarsh has already tied up to Govind Singh

(MD & CEO)



Introduction

Utkarsh Micro Finance Pvt Ltd (UTKARSH) is non-banking 
financial company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of 
India with its registered and corporate office in Varanasi (Uttar 
Pradesh). The company started its microfinance operations in 
September 2009. The company's mission is “Support 
underprivileged and underserved segments by providing 
financial and non-financial services through a socially 
responsible, sustainable and scalable institution.”It operates 
in five states-Uttar Pradesh, Bihar, Madhya Pradesh, 
Uttarakhand & Delhi- through 102 branches, catering to more 
than 2,00,000 clients under the joint liability model. It provides 
loans ranging from Rs 6,000 - Rs 30,000 under the group model 
for income generation purposes like purchase of milch 
animals, setting up and expansion of shops, small businesses, 
petty trading etc. It has also started Micro Enterprise Loan for 
filling the missing middle space.

Macro Environment

The micro finance industry grew by 23% in FY 2012-13, in 
comparison to de growth of 15% in FY 2011-12. The portfolio  
growth has been fairly broad based, with 82% of MFIN 
members showing an increase in portfolio  over FY 11-12 . 
Loans disbursal during FY 12-13 increased by 13%, as 
compared to a reduction of 38% in the previous year. The 
branch network and staff strength of  non AP MFIs increased 
by 4% & 9% respectively. The debt funding to the industry 
increased significantly by 79%

The whole microfinance industry is seeing the consolidation in 
the sector. Consolidation in terms of putting in place various 
norms and structures that will ensure smooth and balanced 
growth in years ahead. The sector has also countered the 
challenges of reduced margins, collection practices, multiple 
lending appropriately. A lot needs to be done but the direction 

and commitment shown by each stakeholder in the sector is 
significant. 

The Reserve Bank of India has provided good amount of clarity 
for smoother operations of the sector. Engagement of the 
sector with various stakeholders have increased significantly, 
thereby, creating a much better understanding of the 
activities, role and importance of microfinance institutions. 
The Reserve Bank has recently allowed 12% margin for all MFIs 
till March 31, 2014. This has provided relief to many MFIs. 
Earlier the Reserve Bank had removed interest rate cap, while 
retaining margin cap. This appears to be a better arrangement 
as capping both interest rate and margin would hurt MFIs 
especially in a rising cost of fund scenario.

The priority sector guidelines issued to banks recognize the 
role played by MFIs in reaching out to the unbanked 
population. This has helped the MFIs to access funds both 
from public as well as private sector Banks.  

Operational Performance

Taking forward the growth momentum of previous years, the 
Company further expanded its operations in two existing 
states and three new states during the financial year. The 
network of branches grew from 75 at the end of previous year 
to 102 at the end of the financial year 2012-13.  The Company 
expanded operations in 5 new districts during this period.  The 
Company is planning to commence operations in more 
districts of Uttar Pradesh, Bihar, Madhya Pradesh and 
Uttarakhand during the financial year 2013-14.

Utkarsh has 197,874 active women entrepreneurs in its Joint 
Liability Groups(JLG) book at the end of the financial year 
2012-13. The Company has made cumulative disbursements 
of Rs. 4,396.4 mn so far.  The JLG loan outstanding at the close 
of business on March 31, 2013 stood at Rs. 1,767.4 mn against 
Rs. 753.0 mn as on March 31, 2012. The quality of portfolio 
continues to be excellent over all these years and with the type 
of thrust the company puts on quality of processes and 
procedures, the company is confident of maintaining high 
quality of origination in future as well. 

Financial Performance

In terms of financial performance of the company, total 
income from operations for the period stood at Rs. 278.8 mn.  
With operating expenses at Rs. 116.80 mn and financial 
expenses at Rs.128.8 mn, the profit before tax for the financial 
year stood at Rs. 59.9 mn.  The company earned Profit after tax 
of Rs. 38.9 mn for the financial year.  

The Company is very comfortably placed in terms of capital 
adequacy requirements. The Capital adequacy of the company 
stood at 42.6% as on 31st March, 2013.
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Resource mobilization

Company got excellent support from the equity partners 
during the year 2012-13. The existing investors, namely 
Aavishkaar Goodwell, International Finance Corporation and 
NMI Frontier Fund KS provided fresh capital to the company to 
the extent of Rs 200.0 mn during the year.  The additional 
capital will be crucial to achieve the planned growth during the 
year 2013-14. 

 

The total funding support from debt providers including off 
balance sheet transactions during the financial year was more 
than Rs 2800.0 mn. The Company acknowledges excellent 
support from various banks and financial institutions during 
the financial year.  It was mainly because of such support we 
received from our funding partners, the Company could 
manage a substantial growth during the year. The 
overwhelming support from both, the debt as well as equity 
partners, gives the Company lot of confidence to meet the 
challenges of liquidity in the months ahead. The Company 
expects that with greater regularity clarity, the comfort level of 
the funders and investors towards the sector will increase 
manifold.  The company has higher funding requirements for 
the year 2013-14 and the company is confident of meeting the 
same.  The company has put lot of thrust on broad basing 
sources of funding and the instruments. It was able to add 11 
new funders in its list during the financial year.

The Company has entered into partnership with Indusind Bank 
for origination of microfinance portfolio. The proposed 
partnership with Indusind bank would help the company 
significantly in terms of availability and continuity of funding.  
This would result in win win situation for both the partners 
since the bank would also get high quality asset on its books.  
Having completed the initial work, the company would see 
scaling of the operations under the partnership arrangement 
during the year 2013-14.

Asian Development Bank Guarantee

Utkarsh was amongst few MFIs which received guarantee 
support from Asian Development Bank.  This was at critical 
juncture when sector was making efforts towards normalcy of 
operations.  The ADB support certainly helped the sector in 
raising enhanced funding from various institutions. 

Micro Enterprise Loan (MEL)

The company commenced micro enterprise loan from March 
2012, to cater to the needs of “missing middle”.  The company 
has two MEL branches in Varanasi and Allahabad.  The year 
was the pilot phase for the company.  The company supported 
307 Clients during the year and disbursed Rs 17.0 mn. The 
portfolio outstanding for MEL was Rs. 14.8 mn at the end of the 
financial year 2012-13.  The company has plans to expand the 

MEL operations during 2013-14 and open 10-12 more 
branches in the target geography to scale the operations

Audit & Internal Control

Utkarsh has an internal audit department headed by an 
experienced banker. There are three types of audit- Snap 
audit, short audit and comprehensive audit. Each branch 
undergoes one type of audit at least once in a month. Apart 
from audit of documents and registers, emphasis is given on 
field processes like client sourcing, centre meetings, loan 
utilization checks etc. The closure of all outstanding audit 
issues has to be done within 14 days. This year, there is 
additional focus on comprehensive audit of all the 
departments at Head Office. Besides the regular audit, the 
company is focusing training of auditors to do social audit in 
terms of behavior of the staff towards clients, appropriate 
collection mechanism, adherence to fair practice code 
adopted by the company.

Rating & Grading

 ICRA has reaffirmed the MFI grading of Utkarsh Microfinance 
at M2 (pronounced M two).  M2 Indicates that in ICRA’s 
current opinion, the Graded MFI’s ability to manage its 
microfinance activities in a sustainable manner is high.

The grading factors in “Utkarsh’s experienced management 
team, strong investor profile, its  ability to raise equity at 
regular intervals from existing investors to meet its growth 
plans and  improvement in financial flexibility with increase in 
the number and quality of lenders from 13 as on March 31, 
2012 to 24 as on March 31, 2013. The grading also factors in 
Utkarsh’s relatively prudent credit policies, good loan 
monitoring and collection mechanisms supported by strong 
Management Information Systems (MIS),  Risk Management 
and Internal Audit Processes which have enabled it to maintain 
good asset quality indicators and collection efficiencies (100% 
for FY2013)”. 

“There have been some improvements in Operational 
procedures of the company with Utkarsh bringing a formal 
Risk policy and branch risk rating model in place. The company 
has also formalized training procedures and manuals at all 
levels. Further, Utkarsh has initiated a pilot on Mobile Based 
Transactions operations through which field staff would be 
able to enter client collection and attendance data on mobile 
phone and this could replace the manual entry in the 
Collection and Disbursement Sheet . Utkarsh has also put in a 
formal grievance redressal mechanism in place.”

“The grading is however constrained by moderate scale of 
operations (managed portfolio size of Rs 178 crore as on 
March 31, 2013), relatively high pace of growth, and large 
expansion plans in relation to current size of operations 
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(company plans to grow at a CAGR of 60% over the next four 
years). Though Utkarsh’s portfolio concentration in the state 
of Uttar Pradesh reduced from 79% as on March 31, 2012 to 
68% as on March 31, 2013, it continues to remain high. ICRA 
has noted management’s intention to geographically 
diversify the portfolio further with opening of branches in 
states of Uttarakhand, Madhya Pradesh and NCR.

Further, Utkarsh is yet to establish a track record of 
sustainable operations in the newer micro-enterprise loan 
product being ventured at present. It would also be important 
for the company to recruit and train personnel going forward, 
in line with the planned branch expansion and replacing 
existing employees especially at field level for the existing 
attrition rates of 24-25%.  Utkarsh’s geographical 
concentration in the state of Uttar Pradesh though declining 
continues to remain high at 68.5% as on March 31, 2013.” 

Bank Loan rating

ICRA has upgraded the ratings assigned to the bank lines of 
U t ka rs h  M i c ro f i n a n c e  P r i va t e  L i m i t e d   f ro m  
[ICRA]BB+(positive) (pronounced ICRA double B plus on a 
positive outlook) to [ICRA]BBB-(pronounced ICRA triple B 
minus). The upgrade in rating factors in “ability of the 
company to grow its portfolio while maintaining its asset 
quality indicators, ( 30+ days overdue portfolio at  0.00% as on 
March 31,2013), improvement in financial flexibility of the 
company with the increase in number and quality of lenders 
from 13 as on March 31, 2012 to 24 as on March 31, 2013 (7 
public sector banks, 10 private sector banks and 7 MFI 
focussed Financial institutions and NBFCs) and  the recent 
equity infusion of Rs. 20 crore by existing investors resulting in 
an increase in Utkarsh’s networth to Rs 64.3 crore as on 
March 31, 2013.  The  rating upgrade also factors in  
improvement in profitability indicators  of the company(from 
1.65% in 2011-12 to 1.81% in 2012-13) supported by 
reduction in operating expenses from 13.08% in 2011-12 to 
9.38% in 2012-13, and low credit provisions despite some 
moderation in yields. Going forward, ICRA expects 
profitability of Utkarsh to improve further with some further 
moderation in operating expenses, and increase in the fee 
based income owing to the company’s recent initiatives such 
as opening of NPS accounts and insurance distribution.

The rating continues to factor in Utkarsh’s experienced 
management team, strong investor profile, good loan 
monitoring and collection mechanisms supported by strong 
Management Information Systems (MIS) and risk 
management function which are likely to help the company 
grow its portfolio. However, ability of the company to manage 
the growth in loan book would be a key rating sensitivity given 
that Utkarsh intends to grow at a CAGR of over 60% over the 
next four years.”

The upgrade in rating is significant as the rating comes under 

the investment grade

Code of Conduct Assessment

Utkarsh, as supported by SIDBI, undertook Code of Conduct 
assessment (COCA) during the financial year.  The company 
received score of 7.8/10 signifying “HIGH LEVEL OF 
ADHERENCE”.

Loan portfolio Audit

Utkarsh undertook Loan Portfolio Audit which was conducted 
by Micro Save. The Loan portfolio audit was to verify 
independently the repayment rate & portfolio at Risk 
reported by the company. The loan portfolio audit  confirms 
the nearly 100% repayment rate and very negligible Portfolio 
at Risk.

Client Protection Principles

The client remains the central to all activities of the company.  
With a view to understand how well the company is serving 
the clients and where are the gaps to cover, the company is 
undergoing Clients protection principles (CPP) assessment 
through Accion. The company will ensure that the gaps 
identified are appropriately addressed.  

Risk management & Responsible Finance

Risk Management(RM) and Responsible Finance (RF) have 
become key departments in the company.  All products, 
processes, procedures, existing or proposed, have to conform 
to the RM & RF framework. Risk management in Utkarsh  has 
evolved out of benchmarking of the best competitive 
practices, our own risk appetite and historical portfolio 
performance and our philosophy on taking additional risk The 
company has robust RM & RF frame work in place and the 
company can say with pride  of having one of the best RM & 
RF frameworks and practices in the microfinance industry.  
While the company had basic structures in place from almost 
beginning, M2I Consulting assisted the company in putting in 
place a framework for RM.  The initiative was supported by 
IFC.

Systems

Technology will play crucial role in days ahead, not only in 
improving the quality of data and data analysis but also 
efficiency of data flow.  In addition, it would significantly 
contribute in improving cost effectiveness of operations.  
Towards this end, Utkarsh has already tied up to roll out 
mobile technology for day to day field operations of the 
company.  The company has already commenced pilot at two 
branches and the year would see all branches operating on 
mobile platform completely. This will enable the company to 
have real time data, besides bringing in operational 
efficiencies.

Annual Report 2012-201310
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Human Resources

The Human Resource Department deals with management of 
people within the organization. The Department is 
responsible for hiring members of staff; this involves 
attracting employees, keeping them in their positions and 
ensuring that they perform to expectation. Besides, the 
Human Resource Department also clarifies and sets day to 
day goals for the organization. It is responsible for 
organization of people in the entire Company and plans for 
future ventures and objectives involving people in the 
Company. At Utkarsh the department, apart from the regular 
functions of recruitment training and promotion is also 
involved in developing better HR tools like performance 
appraisal, three sixty degree feedback, soft skill training etc. 
Working Saturdays are  used for training purposes. Various 
kinds of trainings- Refresher, behavioral and functional 
training are being  provided to staff.Special focus is provided 
for client protection principles.

To ensure that the company has people with right skill and 
quality, there has been lot of emphasis on functional as well 
as skill development based trainings.  The training set up of 
the company has been strengthened substantially during the 
year.  The company got services of MCRIL for improvement on 
training set up of the company.  MCRIL has been able to 
develop good tools for soft skills training for middle and 
senior management of the company.  The curriculum is 
getting rolled out and would focus on development of 
managerial capability.

New Products

NPS: With a view to make available other services, besides 
micro credit, to the members of the company, Utkarsh has 
started providing NPS lite services to the members and non 
members of the company.  With success of initial pilot to test 
the processes and understand demand of the product 
amongst target clientele, the company has started rolling out 
the same at various branches in phased manner.  The 
company expects to scale the product significantly during the 
year 2013-14.

Insurance: Insurance is another product that company 
proposes to launch during 2013-14.  Currently, the company 
provides only credit shield linked with the loan product.  
However, to cater to other insurance requirements of the 
target segment, Utkarsh plans to provide insurance products 
once regulatory approvals are received.  The company is in a 
state of readiness to launch insurance product.

Housing: The company also plans to explore supporting the 
housing finance needs of the lower section of the society by 

focusing on affordable housing, funding for repair, renovation 
& extension. Currently, it is at research stage and final 
decision will be taken during the year.

Client  Grievance Redressal

The company has already in place sound mechanism for the 
redressal of clients’ grievance with toll free number available 
to each member of the Company, which has been effective in 
understanding the issues and appropriate, timely resolution 
of the same

Credit Plus Initiatives

The Company has further strengthened its initiatives in the 
area of providing financial awareness, vocational training, 
market linkages and other non financial services.  During the 
year, the Company organized Health Camps and Financial 
Awareness programs for its members. Besides, livelihood 
support to clients through agarbatti (incense sticks) project 
was further expanded during the year. The company has plans 
to increase the level of activities and also deepen the 
penetration through multiple visits and camps for greater 
effectiveness of the programs.

Utkarsh has dedicated Board member to guide us on Social 
Performance Management (SPM) front.  The Company also 
has an “SPM champion” to take care of this function as a 
dedicated vertical. Earlier, Micro Save assisted the Company 
in putting appropriate SPM framework in place.

Management Discussion & Analysis
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01
Ajai Raj Sharma
Independent Director
He joined the Indian Police Service in 1966 
and served in several sensitive districts of 
Uttar Pradesh, from 1970 to 1982. As a 
Deputy Inspector General of Police, Faizabad 
Range U.P, he was in charge of six districts, 
and subsequently was posted in Bareilly and 
Lucknow zones as the Inspector General of 
Police. In July 1999, he was appointed 
Commissioner of Pol ice ,Delhi.  On 
completion of a record three years tenure as 
Commissioner of Police, in June 2002 he was 
posted as Director General, Border Security 
Force - the world's largest border guarding 
force . Some notable awards that Mr. Ajai Raj 
Sharma has received are the Police Medal for 
Meritorious Service, the President's Police 
Medal for Distinguished Service and the 
President's Police Medal for Gallantry 
besides many others

02
Ajay Bhupendra Maniar
Nominee Director - Aavishkaar Goodwell
He has over 14 years experience across rating 
agencies & banks. He started his career with 
CARE (a credit rating agency ) & then worked in 
HDFC Bank& Citi Bank. He has successfully 
undertaken diverse role within the risk 
domain. He has extensive experience in 
dealing with large, mid-size and small business 
units. He is a chemical engineer & has done his 
Masters in Management Studies (MMS) from 
Jamnalal Bajaj Institute of Management 
Studies (JBIMS), Mumbai, 1996. 

05
Ulf Linders
Nominee Director-NMI
He is the Managing Director of NMI. Mr. 
Linders was most recently Head Asia and 
Power/Renewables worldwide of Sweden's 
Development Finance Institution for 
investments in emerging markets.
Mr. Linders has extensive experience from 
various business sectors in many countries. 
Earlier appointments include President of ABB 
Leasing GmbH, Mannheim; Vice President ABB 
Europe Ltd, Brussels; Senior Banker at 
European Bank/EBRD, London as well as 
facilitator for OEM production and brand 
sourcing originated in China and India.
Mr. Linders holds a Bachelor of Arts (Business 
Administration) from Lund and Uppsala 
University. He also has Postgraduate 
education and training from IMD, Harvard 
Institute for International Development, JFK 
Government School and ABB Academy in 
Baden, Switzerland.

04
Vijayalakshmi Das
Independent Director
She is the Managing Director of Ananya 
Finance for Inclusive Growth Private Ltd. 
Earlier she was the chief executive of FWWB, 
and through it Ms. Das was active in building 
apex funding mechanisms that provide 
linkages between development banks and 
NGOs. She has served as a member of the 
Policy Advisory Group (PAG) of the 
Consultative Group to Assist the Poorest 
(CGAP).  She serves on Board of Access 
Development Services, Cashpor Micro Credit , 
Invest India Micropension Services etc. Ms. 
Das holds Master's degrees in Economics and 
Urban and regional planning, Cashpor Micro 
Credit , Invest India Micropension Services etc. 
Ms. Das holds Master's degrees in Economics 
and Urban and regional planning.

Board Of
      Directors

01 02

03
Ramni Nirula
Independent Director
She was Senior General Manager in ICICI Bank 
and was responsible for Corporate Banking 
and Government Banking Group. She served 
as Managing Director and Chief Executive 
Officer of ICICI Securities of ICICI Bank Ltd. 
from January 1, 2003 to January 31, 2004. She 
has more than three decades of experience in 
the financial sector. She joined ICICI in 1975 
and held various positions in the northern 
regional office of ICICI.She has been a Director 
of Jindal Steel & Power Ltd, Abhishek 
industries Ltd, Ballarpur Industries Ltd.  Ms. 
Nirula holds a Masters in Business 
Administration from Delhi University. . 

03 04 05
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06
Govind Singh
(Managing Director & CEO)
He is the founder and Managing 
Director & CEO of the company. He is 
the former Business Head for Micro 
banking at ICICI Bank. In this capacity, 
he oversaw the largest microfinance 
portfolio for any commercial bank in 
India, relationships with over 100 MFIs, 
as well as the Business Correspondent 
and Bulk Jewel Loan businesses.  He 
t u r n e d  a r o u n d  I C I C I  B a n k ’s  
microfinance business, with impressive 
growth in the book size, while 
improving the portfolio quality 
substantially. A banker for over 22 
years, he was previously the Business 
Head for Rural and Agri Liabilities, and 
the Trust, Societies, Associations, and 
Clubs (TASC) segment. He also has 
extensive experience with the Retail 
L i a b i l i t i e s  G r o u p  a n d  R e t a i l  
Infrastructure Group at ICICI Bank. He 
has worked previously with State Bank 
of Patiala, Surya Roshni group (Financial 
services), Bank Internasional Indonesia 
and Axis Bank. He was also nominated 
by ICICI Bank on the Boards of Cashpor 
Micro Credit and Asmitha Microfin Ltd. 
He was a member of the RBI's Working 
Group to Review the Business 
Correspondent Model. He traveled to 
Brazil and South Africa in 2007 as part of 
RBI study team for financial inclusion. 

a) Audit Committee 

 1. Mr. Ajay Bhupendra Maniar
 2. Ms. Ramni Nirula
 3. Ms. Vijayalakshmi Das
 4. Mr. Ulf Linders

b) Compensation Committee

 1. Mr. Ajai Raj Sharma
 2. Mr. Ajay Bhupendra Maniar
 3. Ms. Ramni Nirula 
 4. Mr. Ulf Linders  

c) Committee for Corporate Governance

 1. Mr. Ajai Raj Sharma
 2. Mr. Ulf Linders
 3. Ms. Vijayalakshmi Das
 4. Mr. Govind Singh

d) Resourcing Committee
 
 1. Mr. Ajay Bhupendra Maniar
 2. Ms. Ramni Nirula
 3. Mr. Govind Singh
 4. Mr. Trilok Nath Shukla

e) Share Allotment Committee
 
 1. Mr. Ajay Bhupendra Maniar
 2. Mr. Govind Singh
 3. Mr. Trilok Nath Shukla

07
Trilok Nath Shukla
(Wholetime Director)
He is the Chief Operating Officer of the 
company and heads Operations. He is 
an MA in Sociology from Purvanchal 
University, UP and holds Advance 
D i p l o m a  i n  R u ra l  Te c h n o l o g y  
Development and Management from 
IERT Allahabad. He joined Cashpor 
Micro Credit in September 1997 and as 
his last assignment, he was the General 
Manager there and was part of Head 
Office Operations Team. He has 
handled various responsibilities in 
Operations, Audit, Risk and HRD during 
his assignment in Cashpor. He has 
attended several training programs in 
and outside India, including visit to 
Grameen Bank, Bangladesh, Boulder 
Program held in Italy and IIM 
Ahmedabad.

Board
        Level

             Committees

Board Of Directors
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Sulabh Jain
(Head, HR & Training)
He is an MBA from Symbiosis Institute of 
International Business. He has over 13 years 
of experience in Agri- Business & Micro 
Finance. His last assignment in ICICI Bank, 
before joining Utkarsh was as Relationship 
Manager for Micro Finance business of 
Eastern Uttar Pradesh & Bihar. Prior to micro 
finance, he handled small and medium 

enterprises, involved in agri-business to extend working capital 
finance and commodity based finance by assessing their credit 
worthiness on various financial and non financial parameters. Prior to 
ICICI Bank, he worked with Jain Agro Products- Ghaziabad and looked 
after formulation & standardization of protocols of new products to 
be introduced as well as looking at the production activity that 
included quality assurance, procurement of raw material and 
managing production team . He has also worked as an entrepreneur 
and was involved in cultivation and marketing of Cut Flowers, Exotic 
Vegetables and Mushrooms.

Rahul Dey
(Head, Internal Audit & MEL) 
He is an MBA from Xavier Institute of 
Management, Bhubansher. He has over 10 
years of experience in Banking and 
Microfinance. Prior to joining Utkarsh, he 
was with Ujjivan Financial Services Pvt Ltd as 
Regional Business Manager, responsible for 
their Individual lending business in East. 
Apart from this, he has worked in various 

capacities with organizations like, Ballarpur Industries Ltd, ICICI Bank 
Ltd, Spandana Spoorthy Financial Ltd and Anjali Microfinance Pvt Ltd. 
In ICICI Bank, as Regional Manager “ West Bengal and North East", he 
was responsible for the Bank's MFI business in the region for more 
than 3 years. 

Abhisheka Kumar
(Chief Financial Officer)
He is an MBA from Institute of Rural 
Management, Anand (IRMA).  He was the 
Regional Head- Microfinance Division, for 
North Region in ICICI Bank before he moved 
to Utkarsh. In ICICI Bank, he handled various 
responsibilities in Microfinance Division, 
both in Product & Relationship Management 
funct ion.  As  a  Regional  Head for  

microfinance business in Northern Region, he was responsible for 
growth in business, profitability, Stressed assets management and 
client monitoring. Before ICICI Bank, he worked with Friends of 
Women's World Banking (India) (FWWB), Ahmedabad. His key 
responsibilities in FWWB were monitoring and providing Technical 
Assistance to nearly 35 Micro Finance Institutions in Tamil Nadu, 
Kerala, Andhra Pradesh, W. Bengal and Orissa. Prior to his MBA from 
IRMA, he had a stint with Times of India for more than 2 years. 

Trilok Nath Shukla
(Wholetime Director)
He is the Chief Operating Officer of the 
company and heads Operations. He is an MA 
in Sociology from Purvanchal University, UP 
and holds Advance Diploma in Rural 
Technology Development and Management 
from IERT Allahabad. He joined Cashpor 
Micro Credit in September 1997 and as his 
last assignment, he was the General Manager 

there and was part of Head Office Operations Team. He has handled 
various responsibilities in Operations, Audit, Risk and HRD during his 
assignment in Cashpor. He has attended several training programs in 
and outside India, including visit to Grameen Bank, Bangladesh, 
Boulder Program held in Italy and IIM Ahmedabad.

Executive

Management Team
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Ashish Maurya
Regional Manager-Azamgarh

Indra Deo Pandey
AVP-Responsible Finance

Mukesh Kumar Singh
AVP-MEL

Shailendra Singh
Regional Manager- Allahabad

Rahul Dwivedi
Regional Manager-Ara

Arvind Kumar
AVP-Product & Strategy

Leena Kumari
AVP-New Initiative

Shyam Sundar Rai
Head Accounts

Sanjay Singh
Zonal Manager

Abhishek Verma
AVP-IT



Institutional
Investors



 Aavishkaar Goodwell

Aavishkaar Goodwell is a for-profit business development 

company that provides equity finance and hands-on support to 

entrepreneurial microfinance organizations in India on a socially 

and commercially sustainable basis. It aims to improve access to 

affordable financial services for millions of families in order to 

contribute to poverty alleviation and sustainable development. 

They help in scaling up entrepreneurial microfinance 

organizations in India and integrating them into the mainstream 

financial sector. 

 International Finance Corporation

 IFC is a member of World Bank Group. IFC supports  

 microfinance by :
 • Engaging in partnerships and collective investment vehicles
 • Supporting commercial banks to extend their operations to 

the sector
 • Providing innovative solutions to microfinance institutions, 

including local currency loans
 • Helping transform nonprofit and nongovernmental 

organizations into for-profit financial
 • Intermediaries
•   Offering targeted advisory services 

 Norwegian Microfinance Initiative (NMI) 

The Norwegian Microfinance Initiative (NMI) is a new and 

innovative strategic partnership between the Norwegian public 

and private sectors that invests in microfinance institutions in 

developing countries. It aims to contribute to the empowerment 

of poor people and to the creation of jobs, wealth and economic 

and social sustainability in developing countries by investing in 

and supporting Microfinance Institutions. 
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Loan Products

Utkarsh Pragati & Utkarsh Kiran ( For Income Generation purpose only)

Loan Amount
The Philosophy of Utkarsh is to start with small loans compatible with the client's household cash flow and the members' comfort of 
giving mutual guarantee to the other people in the group.  The minimum loan size for the first loan is a way of testing the applicants 
and the market, while limiting the institution's exposure to unknown clients.

1st Cycle: ` 6000, ` 8000, ` 10000, ` 12000,  ` 15000, ` 18000, ` 20000 

2nd Cycle: ` 6000, ` 8000, ` 10000, ` 12000, ` 15000, ` 18000, ` 20000

 ` 22500, ` 25000, 

3rd Cycle and above:  ` 6000, ` 8000, ` 10000, ` 12000, ` 15000, ` 18000, 

` 20000, ` 22500, ` 25000, ` 30000

LOAN

AMOUNT

52 weeks/29fortnights/12 months for loan between ` 6000-15000

104 weeks/ 52 fortnights /24 months for loan above ` 15000
TENURE

MEMBERS GROWTH

8,727 

58,623 

115,097 

200,373 

Mar'10 Mar'11 Mar'12 Mar'13
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8,727 8,207

58,623 55,506

1,15,097
1,06,371

2,00,373
1,98,181

63.4 
318.6 

753.1 

1,782.5 

Mar'10 Mar'11 Mar'12 Mar'13



SECTOR WISE OUTSTANDING

Agriculture
11.3%

Live Stock
36.6%

Production
2.8%

Services
15.0%

Trade
34.4%

SOCIAL STATUS

SC
49.5%

ST
4.7%

OBC
40.1%

Others
5.7%

Operational Performance

Annual Report 2012-201322



100% 100% 100% 100%

Mar'10 Mar'11 Mar'12 Mar'13

COLLECTION EFFIENCY

LOAN CLIENT PER CREDIT OFFICER

112

285

492

580

Mar'10 Mar'11 Mar'12 Mar'13
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Revenue
(Rs. in Mn)

OPEX
 (%)

PBT
(Rs. in Mn)
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128.9
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OSS
 (%)

Networth
(Rs. in Mn)

Fund Mobilized
(Rs. in Mn)

126.1

326.1

643.0

101

109
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Profitability

Utkarsh achieved a profit before tax (PBT) of Rs. 59.9 Mn for the 
year ending  March 31, 2013. The remarkable feat was 
achieved because of excellent portfolio quality, efficient cash 
management practices, substantial reduction in operating 
cost, steady growth and improvement in processes. The PBT 
increased from Rs 21.5 Mn for FY 2012 to Rs 59.9 Mn for FY 
2013.

Debt Funding

Total sanctions from Banks/Financial Intuitions (FIs) during the 
financial year 2012-13 were Rs 2798.3 Mn. Total draw down 
during the same period was Rs 2500.0 Mn. Utkarsh was able to 
add 13 new funders, apart from receiving timely funding 
support from existing funders. Utkarsh has existing 
relationship with 24 Banks/FIs.

Equity investments

Utkarsh received Rs 200.0 Mn investment from existing 
institutional investors. The follow up round by the existing 
investors demonstrates the confidence reposed by the 
investors in the company. With this infusion, the net worth of 
the company increased to Rs. 643.0 Mn at the end of the year. 
This will enable the company to focus on expansion in FY 2013-
14. This will also strengthen the position of the company to 
mobilize debt funds.

Diversification of funding sources

A diversified funding base creates opportunities for access to a 
wide array of funding that consistently supports the core 
mission, goals, and services of an organization. Utkarsh is 
conscious of this and consistently endeavors to diversify its 
funding base as well as diversify the funding instruments. It 
has received funds through Term Loan, Bilateral Assignment, 
Securitization, guarantee support etc. It is also trying to raise 
funds through Non-convertible debenture, external 
commercial borrowings etc.

Liquidity Management

The Company manages liquidity risk through proper 
management of funds with multiple parameters. This apart, 
the company also has established diversified and stable 
funding sources in the form of Banks, Development Financial 
Institutions (DFIs), microfinance focused NBFCs  etc. Also as a 
consequence of its impeccable portfolio quality consistently 
maintained over the past several years coupled with the fact 
that almost 100%  of its performing  assets comply with the 
Priority sector lending norms, it has established a track record 
in accessing the funds. The Bankers to the Company also 
increased the limits during the year and as a matter of 
prudence, with a view to manage liquidity risk, the company 
keeps suitable levels of unutilized limits. 

Asset Liability position

A mismatch in the tenure of borrowed and disbursed funds 
could result in a liquidity crunch and impact the Company’s 
ability to service its loans. Hence it is imperative that there 
exists no negative mismatch between the tenure of 
borrowings and assets. At Utkarsh, prudence and appropriate 
risk is the guiding principle for decision making in its treasury 
functions. In this backdrop, the company has maintained 
appropriate asset liability maturity. 

Income from Operations

The revenue from operations in FY 2012-13 is Rs 278.8 Mn. 
This represents a growth of  139%. 

Treasury Management

The centralized treasury management ensures minimum idle 
funds. Temporary Surplus funds are invested in fixed deposits 
and liquid schemes of reputed mutual funds. The company 
received 2.5%  yield as a result of better treasury 
management.

Operating Expense

Utkarsh focused on operating efficiencies since inception and 
analyses it on a monthly basis. The operating expense ratio has 
decreased from 14.8% in March 2012 to  10.4% in March 2013, 
and is expected to further reduced to 8% by March 2014. The 
substantial reduction in opex has been one of the important 
factors apart from excellent portfolio quality, to contribute to 
the profitability of the company. The reduction has been 
possible in spite of the company expanding its operation in 
Madhya Pradesh and Uttarakhand and further penetrating in 
Uttar Pradesh and Bihar.

Financial Performance
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CUMULATIVE LOAN SANCTION 

80.0 
548.1 

1,694.0 

4,492.3 

Mar'10 Mar'11 Mar'12 Mar'13

 Rs in Mn
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Avishkaar 
Goodwell

31.3%

NMI
27.4%

IFC
15.6%

Individual 
Shareholders

14.3%

Promoters, 6.4%

ESOP
4.9%

Intellecash, 0.2%
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NETWORTH

Rs in Mn

68.8 

126.1 

326.1 

643.0 

Mar'10 Mar'11 Mar'12 Mar'13
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Capital Adequacy Ratio



OPEX
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With the objective of interventions through various services, 
an entity in the name of Samutkarsh Welfare Service was 
incorporated as section 25 company under the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 1956. Utkarsh provides 2% of its PBT as 
part of its corporate social responsibility to Samutkarsh 
Welfare Service for undertaking credit plus activities. Some of 
the projects undertaken for credit plus activities are provided 
below:

1. Vocational Training:  The main object of this project is to 
provide training, technical know how, credit and market 
linkages facility to the poor household in rural areas to enable 
them to enhance their house hold income. The aim of this 
initiative is to encourage entrepreneurial activities among the 
poor, with the focus being on providing the family with an 
additional source of income. Keeping this in mind, it started 
providing training of "agarbatti" making to the 
underprivileged women and linking it to the market. The 
following factors have been kept in mind with respect to 
"agarbatti" training.

• Ensuring that the skill is taught keeping in mind the  
constraints of the group member;  therefore training is 
conducted at the village itself. 

•  Training procedure is simplistic in nature, can be 
understood by the common woman. 

• Significant inclusion of the entire family, thus ensuring 
maximum support for the member  from peers as well as 
families (this is done by clearly stating the benefits of the 
training  and its impact on family income and including family 
members in the value addition process).

The company is providing continuous training on incense stick 
production in the twenty (20) villages in Harahua block of 
Varanasi district. In the FY 2012-13, total 12 training were 
organized to enhance skill of members for production of 
agarbatti. The members produced 148.5 ton of agarbatti 
during the year.

  Utkarsh organized 3 health camps during the 2. Health Camp:
FY 2012-13 in collaboration with reputed hospitals. More than 
3000 people were examined in the health camps. The camps 
provided facilities for basic health check up like Blood test, 
sugar test, pregnancy test and distribution of free medicine for 
the members and their families. Utkarsh is committed to 
organize more such camps in future

3. Financial Awareness: The company conducted 88 financial 
awareness training programmes during the year. The main 
thrust was on making the rural women aware about the 
importance of saving, pension etc. It also emphasizes on the 

perils of over indebtedness. More than three thousand 
women participated in the training programmes .

1. Appropriate Product design & delivery: 

As an innovative organization, Utkarsh consistently 
endeavours to develop new products to improve the efficiency 
in delivery of the product/ services and broad base product 
basket to mitigate against product related risks . It also 
endeavours to enlarge the product basket to suit the clients 
requirement. Towards this, it has made changes in loan basket 
and has also introduced Micro Enterprise Loan for taking care 
of higher needs

2. Avoidance of over indebtedness:

i)  Loan application form captures family’s outstanding loans 
 from MFIs, banks, informal lenders  and cross- checked 
 with her family members during house visit by Credit 
 Officer  and Branch Manager

ii)  Utkarsh has a policy since inception not to be third lender in 
 any circumstance. 

iii)  Utkarsh will not disburse loan to any individual having loan 
 from one other formal institutions where the total 
  exposure on the client on the date 
of application including  the current outstanding from the 
other financial institution  and proposed loan from Utkarsh 
exceeds Rs. 40,000 in first  two loan cycles from Utkarsh and 
exceeds Rs. 50,000 in  third and subsequent loan cycles 
from Utkarsh.

iv) Utkarsh does not promote reckless lending. To curb it, it  
has capped incentive for new client creation at 75. It does  
not give targets to Operations Team. The latter presents a  
“Bottom Up Plan”, based on discussion with each Credit 
 Officer.

v)  Utkarsh has taken membership of two credit bureaus and  
has shared its data with both the credit bureaus.It  
 processes loan applications based on the credit bureau 
 report. This has made our process more objective & full 
 proof.

vi) There is lot of emphasis to open branches in less MFI  
penetrated areas. This is an important component during 
 branch survey.

vii) There is a clear rural focus, where the MFI penetration is  
low. Out of total 102 branches, 80 branches are set up in  
rural area.

viii) Loan basket starts as low as Rs 6000, so that the loan is 
provided as per requirement

3. Responsible  Pricing

i)  a ) Transparent Pricing:

Responsible Lending

Social Performance
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•  Loan terms and conditions including fees are explained 
verbally during the CGT, GRT, disbursement time & 
centre meetings. All these are integral part of induction 
training, supervision and regular audit of branch

•  Interest rate is communicated as a declining annual rate

•  All charges and details of repayment (principle + 
interest) are printed on the client pass book

 

 b)  Fair Pricing

• Utkarsh  has  reduced the rate from 31.74% to 28.18% 
in March 2011, before the RBI guidelines. It further 
reduced its rate to 25.9% in May 11, immediately after 
the RBI guidelines.

• Utkarsh did not increase the rate of interest , even after 
RBI removed cap on interest rate even though, it 
operated with much lower margin than RBI stipulation.

ii) Utkarsh reduced the Processing Fees from 2% to 1% in 
March 2011 before RBI guidelines

iii) No handling/administrative charges are retained by 
company for providing insurance

4. Transparency

I) Utkarsh communicates clear, sufficient and timely 
information in local language so that the clients are able to 
understand and take informed decisions. 

ii)  The product details, the terms and conditions of loan are 
communicated during projection meeting, CGT, GRT, at the 
time of disbursement and collection meeting. These are 
also printed on client’s passbooks

iii)Insurance and pre settlement rules are clearly 
communicated

iv) Client consent is taken for sharing data with credit bureau, 
and for off balance sheet transaction

v)  Receipt is given for all kind of transactions.

5.  Complaints Redressal mechanism

i There is a toll free phone line for receiving complaints of 
the borrowers/ members. This number is printed on the 
passbook and is communicated very clearly to all members 
during CGT, GRT, disbursement time and centre meetings. 

ii  Client handling is one of the important parameters for 
appraisal of staff

iii There is a Grievance redressal committee at Head office 
comprising senior management. This committee meets 
every month to discuss the issues.

6.  Fair and respectful treatment of clients

There is lot of emphasis on staff behaviour in training. 
Employees are trained to have respectable and professional 
relationship with the clients and to treat the clients fairly and 
respectfully, without any discrimination

7.  Appropriate collection practice

Utkarsh puts lot of emphasis on appropriate collection 
practice. Some of the measures taken for this are enumerated 
below:

i)  There is no use of agents. All Credit officials are  on roll of 
company

ii) Motivation & Persuasion are preferred means to deal with 
not regular cases

iii) Collection happens  only at centre meetings

iv) There is no collection after sunset

v) Senior officials handle cases where there is problem in 
repayment

vi) Members deposit collection at branches and take receipt

vii) There is no incentive at all for collection efficiency

8. Privacy of client data

Utkarsh does not share client’s information to a third party 
except to the credit bureau without the concent of the 
borrowers. 

Social Performance
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operating expenses, repayment to funders & fresh 
disbursement in field. Investment policy is in place which 
guides the methodology adopted for maintaining liquidity in 
the company. Static liquidity analysis system is in place to 
monitor liquidity for smooth operations. Policy of reserve for 
next 3 month operational requirement is in place. A complete 
mechanism has been implemented to monitor the liquidity 
risk.   

For Market Risk Management, strategy of lesser debt exposure 
in foreign currency exposure is in place. To minimize risk of 
interest rate  fluctuation risk, funding is availed from number 
of funders.

Current Status - Risk Management Structure 

The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing our 
overall risk framework, approving and overseeing execution of 
the Enterprise Risk Management Policy and key risk category 
policies, establishing our risk appetite, and regularly reviewing 
our risk profile.

Head of the Risk Management department repots to Board 
committee and he is responsible for overseeing risk 
management program and driving appropriate action to 
resolve any weaknesses. The risk management program 
begins with a set of policies and risk appetites approved by the 
Board that are implemented through a system of senior 
executive risk committee. 

Each department is the owner of risk for their department. At 
board level audit committee is responsible for reviewing the 
risk report submitted to board on quarterly basis.

Risk Appetite

Stated risk appetites define the parameters for taking and 
accepting risks and are used by management and the Board of 
Directors to make business decisions. Risk appetite statements 
are translated into largely quantitative limits and guidelines.

Control Activities

Control activities are backbone of the company’s risk 
management framework. Control activities include the 
monitoring of adherence to current policy, process and 
procedure requirements, sign-offs, and regular reporting to 
management. 

isk management is a critical part of company’s business Rmodel. Following are the major categories of risks 
associated with the operations of the company : 

1. Credit risk                                2.Operational risk                              

2. Liquidity risk                           4. Market risk 

Utkarsh has strong commitment for risk management. It is 
intended to identify, assess and mitigate risks that affect or 
have the potential to affect our business. 

In Utkarsh, Risk Management Department is dedicated 
department to monitor and manage the above mentioned 
risks. To develop the proper risk management structure, IFC 
provided support of technical assistance through M2i 
consulting.

Journey So Far

Due to changes in financial services industry and changes in 
regulatory environments, critical risk management practices 
are top priority for the company. Proper process mapping 
exercise is done for each department and accordingly control 
measures have been implemented for mitigation of potential 
risks perceived. 

For Credit Risk Management, various operational as well as 
policy controls are in place. Growth trend and immediate 
attention centers are properly monitored regularly monitored. 

For Operational Risk Management, loss event trends are 
analyzed through audit report and effectiveness of existing 
process / policy are reviewed and accordingly recommended 
to management for taking appropriate action.

For Liquidity Risk Management, finance department ensures 
sufficient liquidity to meet the requirement of statutory dues, 

RISK
MANAGEMENT
A PLANNED
APPROACH

Risk Management
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ver the last few years, microfinance has evolved Osignificantly. New players including banks and other 
financial institutions have entered the field, offering 

range of services to low-income clients. However, a segment of 
clients which are beyond the scope of traditional microfinance 
sector and are not catered by the formal banking sector, still 
finding it difficult to manage their financial needs. This 
segment basically consists of small entrepreneurs who are 
into, general store, small scale manufacturing, power loom, 
cattle rearing, tailoring, etc.

Looking into the need and prospects in this segment, Utkarsh, 
in addition to its group loan products for underprivileged 
segment, has rolled out a financial product “Micro Enterprise 
Loan (MEL)” for financially underserved / un-served 
customers in the aforesaid segment. Utkarsh’s existing group 
loan clients having a good credit history and need a larger 
amount of credit to expand their business can also avail MEL. 
The purpose of the loan is primarily for growing and expanding 
their businesses with loans ranging from Rs 25,000 to 
Rs 3, 00,000.

IFC, which is an initial investor in Utkarsh, has also provided 
support for the development and implementation of the 
strategy and business plan for this new segment through the 
placement of a Resident Advisor. 

As on 31st March 2013, with two branches Varanasi and 
Allahabad, the MEL portfolio was Rs 14.7 Mn with a client base 
of 307. 

Looking into the business opportunity, Utkarsh is planning to 
open 13 additional MEL branches during the FY 13-14 across 
Uttar Pradesh, Bihar, Madhya Pradesh, Uttarakhand and NCR.

Micro Enterprises Loan
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t gives us great pleasure to bring this report to the I  
members of Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited on 
completion of an overall satisfactory financial year.  The 

Company could register good progress on all parameters 
during the financial year 2012-13.

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited (formerly Shre 
Pathrakali Finance Company Ltd.) started micro finance 
activities in September 2009.  With completion of three and 
half years of microfinance operations, various departments 
are fully functional by now and processes, procedures have 
been well established to ensure smoother and steady growth 
in years ahead. 

Macro Environment

The whole microfinance industry is seeing the consolidation in 
the sector.  Consolidation in terms of putting in place various 
norms and structures that will ensure smooth and balanced 
growth in years ahead.  The sector has also countered the 
challenges of reduced margins, collection practices, multiple 
lending appropriately. A lot needs to be done but the direction 
and commitment shown by each stakeholder in the sector is 
significant. 

The Reserve Bank of India has provided good amount of clarity 
for smoother operations of the sector. Engagement of the 
sector with various stakeholders have increased significantly, 
thereby, creating a much better understanding of the 
activities, role and importance of microfinance institutions.   

More clarity on regulatory front and disciplined approach by 
the members will certainly be very crucial to become 
significant player in the financial inclusion initiatives of the 
nation and reaching out to the most deprived section of the 
society in transparent and consistent manner.

Operational, Financial and Social Performance

Taking forward the growth momentum of previous years, the 
Company further expanded its operations in two existing 
states and three new states during the financial year. The 
network of branches grew from 75 at the end of previous year 
to 102 at the end of the financial year 2012-13.  The Company 
expanded operations in 5 new districts during this period.  The 
Company is planning to commence operations in more 
districts of Uttar Pradesh, Bihar, Madhya Pradesh and 
Uttarakhand during the financial year 2013-14.

Utkarsh has 197,874 active women entrepreneurs in its Joint 
Liability Groups(JLG) book at the end of the financial year 
2012-13. The Company has made cumulative disbursements 
of Rs. 4,396.4 Mn so far.  The JLG loan outstanding at the close 
of business on March 31, 2013 stood at Rs. 1,767.4 Mn against 
Rs. 753.0 Mn as on March 31, 2012.  The quality of portfolio 
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continues to be excellent over all these years and with the type 
of thrust the company puts on quality of processes and 
procedures, the company is confident of maintaining high 
quality of origination in future as well. 

In terms of financial performance of the company, total 
income from operations for the period stood at Rs. 278.8 Mn.  
With operating expenses at Rs. 116.80 Mn and financial 
expenses at Rs.128.8 Mn, the profit before tax for the financial 
year stood at Rs. 59.9 Mn.  The company earned Profit after tax 
of Rs. 38.9 Mn for the financial year.  

The Company is very comfortably placed in terms of capital 
adequacy requirements. The company raised fresh round of 
equity during the last quarter of the year.  The company raised 
equity capital to the tune of Rs. 200 Mn from the existing 
institutional investors and thereby, the capital adequacy of the 
Company stood at 42.36% as on 31st March, 2013.

ICRA upgraded grading of the company from M3+ to M2.  This 
enhancement in Company’s grading from previous year 
signifies improved operations of the Company.  The revised 
grading by ICRA suggest company’s ability to manage its 
microfinance activities in a sustainable manner is high.

Credit Plus Initiatives 

The Company has further strengthened its initiatives in the 
area of providing financial awareness, vocational training, 
market linkages and other non financial services.  During the 
year, the Company organized Health Camps and Financial 
Awareness programs for its members.  Besides, livelihood 
support to clients through agarbatti (incense sticks) project 
was further expanded during the year. The company has plans 
to increase the level of activities and also deepen the 
penetration through multiple visits and camps for greater 
effectiveness of the programs.

Micro Enterprise Loan (MEL)

The company commenced micro enterprise loan from March 
2012, to cater to the needs of “missing middle”.  The company 
has two MEL branches in Varanasi and Allahabad.  The year 
was the pilot phase for the company.  The company supported 
307 Clients during the year and disbursed Rs.17.0   Mn .  The 
portfolio outstanding for MEL was Rs. 14.7 Mn at the end of 
the financial year 2012-13.  The company has plans to expand 
the MEL operations during 2013-14 and open 10-12 more 
branches in the target geography to scale the operations. 

Our Strategy & Other Developments

The company plans to further expand its operations in the five 
existing states.  The Company sees huge potential in the target 
geography and plans to concentrate on the core geography for 

future expansion as well.    In particular, the company plans to 
open more branches in the states of Bihar and Madhya 
Pradesh.

To ensure that the company has people with right skill and 
quality, there has been lot of emphasis on functional as well as 
skill development based trainings.  The training set up of the 
company has been strengthened substantially during the year.  
The company got services of MCRIL for improvement on 
training set up of the company.  MCRIL has been able to 
develop good tools for soft skills training for middle and senior 
management of the company.  The curriculum is getting rolled 
out and would focus on development of managerial capability.

Risk Management(RM) and Responsible Finance (RF) have 
become key departments in the company.  All products, 
processes, procedures, existing or proposed, have to conform 
to the RM & RF framework.  The company has robust RM & RF 
frame work in place and the company can say with pride  of 
having one of the best RM & RF frameworks and practices in 
the microfinance industry.  While the company had basic 
structures in place from almost beginning, M2I Consulting  
assisted the company in putting in place a framework for RM.  
The initiative was supported by IFC.

Utkarsh has dedicated Board member to guide us on Social 
Performance Management (SPM) front.  The Company also 
has an “SPM champion” to take care of this function as a 
dedicated vertical. Earlier, MicroSave assisted the Company in 
putting appropriate SPM framework in place.

 

Utkarsh, as supported by SIDBI, undertook Code of Conduct 
assessment (COCA) during the financial year.  The company 
received score of 7.8/10 signifying “HIGH LEVEL OF 
ADHERENCE”.

Technology will play crucial role in days ahead, not only in 
improving the quality of data and data analysis but also 
efficiency of data flow.  In addition, it would significantly 
contribute in improving cost effectiveness of operations.  
Towards this end, Utkarsh has already tied up to roll out mobile 
technology for day to day field operations of the company.  The 
company has already commenced pilot at two branches and 
the year would see all branches operating on mobile platform 
completely.

With a view to make available other services, besides micro 
credit, to the members of the company, Utkarsh has started 
providing NPS lite services to the members and non members 
of the company.  With success of initial pilot to test the 
processes and understand demand of the product amongst 
target clientele, the company has started rolling out the same 
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challenges of liquidity in the months ahead. The Company 
expects that with greater regularity clarity, the comfort level of 
the funders and investors towards the sector will increase 
manifold.  The company has higher funding requirements for 
the year 2013-14 and the company is confident of meeting the 
same. The company has put lot of thrust on broad basing 
sources of funding and the instruments.

The Company has entered into partnership with Indusind Bank 
for origination of microfinance portfolio. The proposed 
partnership with Indusind bank would help the company 
significantly in terms of availability and continuity of funding.  
This would result in win win situation for both the partners 
since the bank would also get high quality asset on its books.  
Having completed the initial work, the company would see 
scaling of the operations under the partnership arrangement 
during the year 2013-14.

Asian Development Bank Guarantee

Utkarsh was amongst few MFIs who received guarantee 
support from Asian Development Bank. This was at critical 
juncture when sector was making efforts towards normalcy of 
operations. The ADB support certainly helped the sector in 
raising enhanced funding from various institutions. 

Not Accepting Public Deposits

The Company is not accepting public deposits, and it will not 
accept public deposits in future, without the written 
permission of the Reserve Bank of India. 

Conservation of Energy

Energy consumed by the Company during this period is only in 
the form of electricity consumption in the course of operating 
administrative offices. Hence the Company is not required to 
make any particular step for conservation of energy, and its 
disclosure in this report, as required under section 217(I)(e) of 
the companies Act 1956.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

During the financial year 2012-13 foreign exchange inflow 
equivalent to INR 200.0 Mn was received in terms of equity 
investment in the Company and Rs.5.42 Mn as performance 
based grants from International Finance Corporation. 

Material Changes and Commitments

There are no material changes & commitments during the 
financial year 2012-13.

Directors Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 
Directors, based on the representations from the 
Management, confirm that:

at various branches in phased manner.  The company expects 
to scale the product significantly during the year 2013-14.

Insurance is another product that company proposes to 
launch during 2013-14.  Currently, the company provides only 
credit shield linked with the loan product.  However, to cater to 
other insurance requirements of the target segment, Utkarsh 
plans to provide insurance products once regulatory approvals 
are received.  The company is in a state of readiness to launch 
insurance product.

The company also plans to explore supporting the housing 
finance needs of the lower section of the society by focusing 
on affordable housing, funding for repair, renovation & 
extension.  Currently, it is at research stage and final decision 
will be taken during the year.

With regulatory margin requirements in place, efficiency of 
operations would be of great significance.   The company is 
putting a framework in place to review and re-look at 
processes, procedures, products on regular basis from 
operational efficiency point of view.

The client remains the central to all activities of the company.  
With a view to understand how well the company is serving 
the clients and where are the gaps to cover, the company is 
undergoing Clients protection principles (CPP) assessment 
through Accion.  The company will ensure that the gaps 
identified are appropriately addressed.  The company has 
already in place sound mechanism for the redressal of clients’ 
grievance with toll free number available to each member of 
the Company, which has been effective in understanding the 
issues and appropriate, timely resolution of the same.

Liquidity  

Company got excellent support from the equity partners 
during the year 2012-13. The existing investors, namely 
Aavishkaar Goodwell, International Finance corporation and 
NMI Frontier Fund KS provided fresh capital to the company to 
the extent of Rs 200.0 Mn during the year. The additional 
capital will be crucial to achieve the planned growth during the 
year 2013-14. 

 

The total funding support from debt providers including off 
balance sheet transactions during the financial year was more 
than Rs. 2798.3 Mn. The Company acknowledges excellent 
support from various banks and financial institutions during 
the financial year.  It was mainly because of such support we 
received from our funding partners, the Company could 
manage a substantial growth during the year. The 
overwhelming support from both, the debt as well as equity 
partners, gives the Company lot of confidence to meet the 
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I)  that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed.

ii)   that the Directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are considered reasonable and prudent so as to 
give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company at the 
end of the Financial Year on 31 March 2013, and of the profits 
of the Company for that year.

iii)   that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for 
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the companies act of 1956, 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other irregularities, and

iv) that the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis.

Changes in Directorship

Mr. Henning Haugerudbråten stepped down from his position 
as nominee director of the Company during the financial year 
due to his personal reasons.  The Board would like to put on 
record it’s appreciation for the immense contribution made by 
him in shaping the strategies and policies of the Company.

Mr. Ulf Lennart Stefan Linders was appointed as nominee 
director during the year. The Company is getting benefit of 
their rich experience in various fields.

Employees

No employee is covered under the section 217(2A) of the 
Companies Act, 1956.
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Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
Utkarsh Micro fFinance Private Limited, ('the Company'), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2013, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for 
the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 
('collectively referred to as the 'financial statements'). 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, the financial performance and the cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting 
Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 ("the Act").  This responsibility includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 

auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India:

i. in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of  
the Company as at 31 March 2013;

ii. in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the 
 profit for the year ended on that date; and 

iii. in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows 
 for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 
 2003, as amended ("the Order") issued by the Central 
 Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of 
 Section 227 of the Act, we enclose in the Annexure a 
 statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 
 of the said Order.

2. As required by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations 
 which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
 necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by 
 law have been kept by the Company so far as appears 
 from our examination of those books;

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and 
 the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
 agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of 
 Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement comply 
 with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section 

INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT

To,
The Members of
Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited 
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

 (3C) of Section 211 of the Act; and

e) on the basis of written representations received from 
 the directors as on 31 March 2013, and taken on record 
 by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the 
 directors is disqualified as on on 31 March 2013, from 
 being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of 
 sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Act.

for B S R and Company

Chartered Accountants

Firm Membership No: 128900W

Zubin Shekary

Partner

Membership No: 048814

Place: Hyderabad

Date : 28 May 2013
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nnexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of Aeven date to the members of Utkarsh Micro fFinance 
Private Limited ("the Company") for the year ended 

31 March 2013. We report that:

i (a) The Company has maintained proper records 
 showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
 and situation of fixed assets.

 (b) The Company has a regular programme of physical 
verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets are 
verified in a phased manner over a period of one year. In our 
opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noted on 
such verification.

 (c) Fixed assets disposed off during the year were not 
substantial, and therefore, do not affect the going 
concern assumption.

ii. The Company is a Non Banking Finance Company 
('NBFC'), engaged in the business of providing loans. 
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Hence, 
paragraph 4 (ii) of the Order is not applicable.

iii. The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, 
secured or unsecured, to or from companies, firms or other 
parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 
of the Companies Act, 1956. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal 
control system commensurate with the size of the Company 
and the nature of its business with regard to the purchase of 
fixed assets and with regard to services rendered by the 
Company. The activities of the Company do not 
involve purchase of inventory and the sale of goods. We 
have not observed any major weakness in the internal 
control system during the course of our audit.

v. In our opinion, and according to the information and 

ANNEXURE TO
INDEPENDENT
THE AUDITOR'S
REPORT



explanations given to us, there are no contracts and 
arrangements the particulars of which need to be entered 
into the register maintained under section 301 of 

the Companies Act, 1956.

vi. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public.

vii. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

viii. The Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section

(1) of section 209 of the Companies Act, 1956 for any of the 
services rendered by the Company.

ix. (a) According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has been generally regular in 
depositing amounts deducted/accrued in the books 
of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, 
Service tax, and other material statutory dues with the 
appropriate authorities except for certain cases of Service 
Tax where there have been slight delays. As explained to us, 
the Company did not have any dues on  account 
of Investor education and Protection Fund, Sales tax, Excise 
duty, Wealth tax and Customs duty and cess. 

 (b)  According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident 
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Service tax 
and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 
March 2013 for a period of more than six months from the 
date they became payable.

 (c)  As explained to us, the Company did not have any 
dues on account of Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, 
Customs duty, Wealth tax, Excise duty and Cess which have 
not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on 
account of any dispute.

x. The Company did not have any accumulated losses at the 
end of the financial year and has not incurred cash losses in 
the financial year. The Company has not incurred cash losses 
in the immediately preceding financial year. 

xi. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of dues to its bankers or to any financial 
institutions. The Company did not have any outstanding 
debentures during the year.  

xii. The Company has not granted any loans and advances on 
the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, 
debentures and other securities.

xiii. In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company is not a chit fund or a 
nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ society.

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company is not dealing or trading in shares,  
securities, debentures and other investments.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not given any guarantee for 
loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

xvi. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the term loans taken by the 
Company have been applied for the purpose for which they 
were raised. 

xvii. According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the 
Company, we are of the opinion that the funds raised on 
short-term basis have not been used for long-term  
investment.

xviii. According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has made preferential allotment of shares 
to certain parties covered in the register maintained under 
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. In our opinion, the 
price at which shares have been issued are not prejudicial to 
the interest of the Company.

xix.  The Company did not have any outstanding debentures 
during the year.

xx.  The Company has not raised any money by way of public 
issue.

xxi.  According to the information and explanations given to 
us, we report that no material fraud on or by the Company 
has been noticed / reported during the year except for two 
instances of misappropriation of cash aggregating to 
 Rs.1,262,360 by certain employees of the Company on 
account cash embezzlement. Out of the above stated 
amount, Rs. 274,000 has been recovered from certain 
employees and the  Company is attempting  to recover the 
balance. The services of these employees have been 
terminated. 
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)

Company Overview

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited (formerly Shre 
Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited) ("Utkarsh" or 
"the Company") was originally incorporated as a Public 
Limited Company on May 15, 1990 under the Companies Act, 
1956. The Company was initially registered effective 15 June 
1999 as a deposit taking Non Banking Financial Company 
under section 45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934. The Company repaid 
all its outstanding public deposits (including interest accrued 
and due) on 22 August 2009. Subsequently, the Company 
with an main objective of carrying on micro  lending, 
converted into a Private Limited Company on 09 December 
2009 and on 19 March 2010 obtained a certificate of 
registration from Reserve Bank of India to commence/ carry 
on the business of Non Banking Financial institution without 
accepting public deposit.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of micro 
finance, following group lending methodology and providing 
small value unsecured group loans to lower income group of 
below poverty line (BPL) in urban and rural areas. The tenure 
of these loans is generally spread over a period of upto 2 
years.

1.  Significant accounting policies
a. Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared and presented 
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India and comply with the 
Accounting Standards ("AS") prescribed by the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, the relevant provisions 
of the Companies Act, 1956 ('the Act') and the Reserve Bank 
of India ('RBI') guidelines to the extent applicable to a non 
deposit taking non banking finance company. The financial 
statements are presented in Indian Rupees rounded off to 
the nearest rupee.

b. Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the 
date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is 
recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

c. Current - non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-
current.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the 
following criteria:
I. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or 

consumption in, the Company's normal operating cycle;
ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
iii. it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the 

reporting date; or 
iv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from 

being exchanged or used to settle a liability for atleast 12 
months after the reporting date.

 Current assets include the current portion of non-current 
financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-
current.

d. Current - non-current classification (continued)
Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the 

following criteria:
i. it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal 

operating cycle;
ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
iii. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting 

date; or 
iv. the Company does not have an unconditional right to 

defer settlement of the liability for atleast 12 months after 
the reporting date.  Terms of a liability that could, at the 
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the 
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

 Current liabilities include the current portion of non-
current financial liabilities.  All other liabilities are 
classified as non-current.

Operating cycle
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months 
that is the time between the acquisition of assets for 
processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents.

e. Revenue Recognition
I Interest income on loan portfolio is recognised in the 
 Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis using 
  effective interest method except in the 
case of non-  performing assets ("NPA's") 
where it is recognised, upon  realisation, as per the 
prudential norms of RBI. 
ii. Gain on securitisation of assets is recognised on the 
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)

intended use.  Borrowing costs directly attributable to 
acquisition of those fixed assets which necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use 
are capitalized.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, 
outstanding at each balance sheet date are  shown under 
capital advances. The cost of fixed assets acquired but not 
ready for their intended use before such date are disclosed 
under capital work-in-progress.
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided using the straight 
line method (SLM) as per the rates of depreciation prescribed 
in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. Depreciation is 
calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date assets are 
purchased/sold. Fixed assets individually costing less than Rs. 
5,000 are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

h. Investments
Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be 
held for a period of not more than a year are classified as 
current investments. Current investments are valued at 
lower of cost and fair value determined on individual 
investment basis. All other investments are classified as long 
term investments. Long term investments are carried at cost. 
Provision is recognised for any diminution in the value of 
investments, other than temporary. 

i. Foreign currency transaction
Profit and Loss items denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated using the exchange rate in effect on the date of 
transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon 
settlement of foreign currency transaction are included in 
determining profit and loss for the period in which the 
transaction is settled.
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and 
liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at the 
Balance Sheet date. The gains or loss resulting from such 
transactions are included in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Non monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the 
exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

j. Employee benefits
Contribution to gratuity fund (a defined benefit plan) 
determined at the balance sheet date are charged to 
Statement of Profit and Loss.
Contribution payable to recognised provident fund which is 
defined contribution scheme, is charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. All actuarial gains and losses arising during 

 difference between the book value of the securitised 
 assets and consideration received on the assets 
  derecognised from books. The same is amortised 

over the  life of the securitised loan 
portfolio and losses, if any, are  recognised immediately.
iii. Loan processing fees collected from the borrowers is 
 recognised over the tenure of the loan.
iv. Interest on term deposits has been accrued on time 
 proportion basis, using the underlying interest rate.
v. Income from non refundable revenue grant is recognised 
 on receipt basis on fulfillment of grant obligation. 
vi. Dividend income is accounted when the right to receive 
 the dividend is established.

f. Classification of loan portfolio and provisioning policy
All loan exposures are classified as per RBI guidelines, into 
performing and non-performing assets ("NPAs"). 
Further,NPAs are classified into sub-standard, doubtful and 
loss assets in accordance with the extant Non-Banking 
Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting and Holding) Companies 
Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Direction, 2007. The 
provisioning rates and classification criteria for NPAs, which 
are not lower than the rates prescribed in RBI guidelines, are 
given below:

In addition to the specific provision on NPAs, the Company 
maintains an additional general provision of 0.5% and 3% on 
gross loan balance outstanding of standard assets with no 
overdue pertaining to micro finance portfolio and micro 
enterprises loans respectively. The Company has not 
rescheduled/ restructured any loans during the year.
g. Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition less 
accumulated depreciation. The cost of fixed assets comprises 
the purchase price, taxes, duties, freight (net of rebates and 
discounts) and any other directly attributable costs of 
bringing the assets to their working condition for their 

Provisioning

10%

20%

30%

50%

100%

Write off

Asset Classification

Sub standard–I

Sub standard–II

Sub standard–III

Sub standard–IV

Doubtful

Loss

31 to 60 days

61 to 90 days

91 to 120 days 

121–180 days

180–365 days

>365 days

Overdue days
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)

the year recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Unutilized earned compensation absences determined at 
the balance sheet date are charged to Statement of Profit and 
Loss.    

k. Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.
Current tax 
The current charge for income taxes is calculated in 
accordance with the relevant tax regulations applicable to 
the Company.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax charge or benefit reflects the tax effects of 
timing differences between accounting income and taxable 
income for the year. The deferred tax charge or benefit and 
the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are 
recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable 
certainty that the assets can be realized in future; however, 
where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of 
losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a 
virtual certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax 
assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and written-
down or written-up to reflect the amount that is 
reasonably/virtually certain to be realized.

l. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share ("EPS") is computed by dividing the 
net profit after tax for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of 
calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit after tax for 
the year and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity 
shares are deemed to have been converted as of the 
beginning of the year, unless they have been issued at a later 
date

m. Provisions and contingent liabilities
The Company creates a provision when there is a present 
obligation as a result of an obligating event that probably 
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount for the obligation.  A disclosure for a 
contingent liability is made when there is a possible 
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will 
not, require an outflow of resources.  Where there is a 
possible obligation or a present obligation that the likelihood 

of outflow of resource is remote, no provision or disclosure is 
made.

n. Impairment of assets
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether 
there is any indication that any assets forming part of its cash 
generating units may be impaired.  If any such indication 
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the 
asset.  If such recoverable amount of the asset or the 
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the 
asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction 
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.  If at the balance sheet date, 
there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment 
loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed 
and the asset is reflected at the reassessed recoverable 
amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2013
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated )

As at
31 March 2013

As at
31 March 2012

As per our report attached

for B S R and Company
Chartered Accountants

Zubin Shekary

Partner

Membership No: 48814

Place : Hyderabad

Date : 28 May, 2013

  Ajeet Kumar 
  Company Secretary

  Trilok Nath Shukla
  Director

  Govind Singh
  Managing Director

Note

Equity And Liabilities      

Shareholder's funds      

Share capital 2.1    241,137,030     161,723,460 

Reserves and surplus 2.2    401,872,589     164,344,026 

    643,009,619     326,067,486 

Non-current Liabilities      

Long-term borrowings 2.3    677,845,665     136,292,434 

Deferred tax liabilities, net 2.24    -       71,310 

Other long-term liabilities 2.4    1,131,559     -   

Long-term provisions 2.5    1,184,379     105,268 

    680,161,603     136,469,012 

Current liabilities      

Short-term borrowings 2.6    50,325,855     139,941,181 

Other current liabilities 2.7    1,235,190,256     363,175,710 

Short-term provisions 2.8    9,471,658     4,801,201 

    1,294,987,769     507,918,092 

Total    2,618,158,991    970,454,590 

      

ASSETS      

Non-current assets      

Fixed assets 2.9      

(I) Tangible Assets    6,441,691     3,752,966 

(ii) Intangible Assets    714,594     863,965 

Deferred tax assets, net 2.24    145,323     -   

Gross loan portfolio   205,118,445     21,053,613  

Less : Managed portfolio   -       315,830  

Loan portfolio 2.10    205,118,445     20,737,783 

Long-term loans and advances 2.11    30,153,955     5,748,861 

Other non-current assets 2.12    165,694,958     109,160,938 

    408,268,966     140,264,513 

Current assets      

Current investments 2.13    507,333     1,031,370 

Cash and bank balances 2.14    987,247,888     430,075,704 

Gross loan portfolio   1,577,400,060     732,030,897  

Less : Managed portfolio   406,827,430     364,571,017  

Loan portfolio 2.10    1,170,572,630     367,459,880 

Short-term loans and advances 2.15    19,290,737     7,509,689 

Other current assets 2.16    32,271,437     24,113,434 

    2,209,890,025     830,190,077 

Total    2,618,158,991    970,454,590 

Significant accounting policies  1      

Notes to financial statements 2    
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2013
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note
As at

31 March 2013
As at

31 March 2012

As per our report attached

for B S R and Company
Chartered Accountants

Zubin Shekary

Partner

Membership No: 48814

Place : Hyderabad

Date : 28 May, 2013

  Ajeet Kumar 
  Company Secretary

  Trilok Nath Shukla
  Director

  Govind Singh
  Managing Director

Income    

Revenue from operations 2.17   278,761,182    116,829,900 

Other income 2.18   34,324,838    12,030,920 

Total revenue   313,086,020    128,860,820 

    

Expenses    

    

Operating  expenses 2.19   9,815,454    5,111,597 

Employee benefits expense 2.20   87,642,363    54,322,267 

Finance costs 2.21   128,761,931    35,198,731 

Depreciation and amortisation  2.9   2,101,098    1,055,127 

Other expenses* 2.22   24,856,346    11,647,313 

Total expenses   253,177,192    107,335,035 

    

Profit before tax   59,908,828    21,525,785 

    

Tax expenses:    

 - Current tax   21,231,068    7,404,860 

 - Deferred tax expense/(benefit)    (216,633)   71,310 

 - Prior period taxes    -      (88,931)

Profit after tax   38,894,393    14,138,546 

    

Earning per equity share 2.26    

Nominal value of shares Rs. 10 (previous year: Rs. 10)    

Basic    3.11    1.38 

Diluted    2.82   1.24 

    

Significant accounting policies 1    

Notes to financial statements 2    

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

    

*Other expenses include Rs.1,198,176 (previous year Rs. 645,788) contribution made towards corporate social responsibility to Samutkarsh Welfare 
Services.    
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2013
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at
31 March 2013

As at
31 March 2012

As per our report attached

for B S R and Company
Chartered Accountants

Zubin Shekary

Partner

Membership No: 48814

Place : Hyderabad

Date : 28 May, 2013

  Ajeet Kumar 
  Company Secretary

  Trilok Nath Shukla
  Director

  Govind Singh
  Managing Director

Cash flows from operating activities   
Net profit before tax   59,908,828    21,525,785 

Adjustments :    
Depreciation and amortisation   2,101,098    1,055,127 
Provisions on loan portfolio   5,518,947    2,195,121 
Dividend income from mutual funds   (854,254)   (1,006,888)
Loss on sale of assets   62,859    -
Operating cash flow before working capital changes    66,737,478    23,769,145 

(Increase) / decrease in loan portfolio   (987,493,411)   (147,800,128)
(Increase) / decrease in long term loans and advances   (22,793,932)   (1,467,075)
(Increase) / decrease in short term loans and advances   (11,802,339)   (624,106)
(Increase)/ decrease in other assets   (30,551,364)   (8,046,926)
Increase / (decrease) in liabilities and provisions   873,398,014    180,051,489 
Cash (used) / generated from operations   (112,505,554)   45,882,399 
Income taxes paid, net   (22,842,230)   (7,404,860)
Net cash provided/(used) in operating activities (A)   (135,347,784)   38,477,539 
    
Cash flows from investing activities    
Purchase of fixed assets, net   (4,703,311)   (2,647,357)
Dividend income from mutual funds   854,254    1,006,888 
Purchase  of investments   (632,154,254)   (488,016,886)
Redemption of mutual fund   632,678,291    487,485,518 
Investment in long term deposits with maturity of  more than three  months  (177,118,638)   (122,093,928)
    
Net cash provided/(used) by investing activities (B)   (180,443,658)   (124,265,765)
    
Cash flows from financing activities    
Proceeds from issuance of share capital, net   278,047,740    185,821,410 
Proceeds from long term borrowings, net   541,553,231    121,156,160 
Proceeds from/(repayment of) short term borrowings, net   (89,615,325)   139,941,182 
Net cash provided by financing activities ( C )   729,985,646    446,918,752 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)   414,194,204    361,130,526 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   388,704,242    27,573,716 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 2.14)   802,898,446    388,704,242 
Note :    
Cash and cash equivalents comprises:    
Cash in hand   963,449    446,635 
Balances with banks    
in current accounts   253,744,304    59,118,994 
in deposit accounts   548,190,693    329,138,613 

   802,898,446    388,704,242 

  Abhisheka Kumar   
Chief Financial Officer
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at
31 March 2013

As at
31 March 2012

Particulars No. of Shares Amount

The reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding is set out below:

No. of Shares Amount

The reconciliation of the number of preference shares outstanding is set out below:

Particulars No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of 
capital:      
The Company has single class equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per equity share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends 
and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time subject to payment of dividend 
to preference shareholders.  In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the 
Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.   
   
The Company had issued 4,952,978 0.01% compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs.21.9 to NMI Frontier 
Fund KS, Norway and 1,003,134  0.01% compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs.10 each at a premium of Rs.21.9 to International Finance 
Corporation in the previous year. These compulsory convertible preference shares were converted in to equity shares during the year.   
 

2.1 Share capital    

     

 Authorised:    

 Equity Shares    

 27,000,000 (previous year:17,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each   270,000,000    170,000,000

     

 Preference Shares    

 3,000,000 (previous year: 8,000,000) preference shares of Rs. 10 each  30,000,000    80,000,000

    300,000,000    250,000,000

 Issued, subscribed and paid-up    

     

 Equity Shares    

 24,113,703 (previous year:10,216,234) equity shares of

 Rs. 10 each fully paid up   241,137,030    102,162,340

     

 Preference Shares    

 Nil  (previous year: 5,956,112) 0.01% Compulsory

 Convertible Preference Shares of

 Rs. 10 each fully paid up   -    -      59,561,120

    241,137,030    161,723,460   

Equity shares      
Outstanding at the beginning of the year   10,216,234   102,162,340  10,210,783    102,107,830 
Issued during the year   13,897,469   138,974,690  5,451    54,510 
      
Outstanding at the end of the year  24,113,703   241,137,030  10,216,234    102,162,340 

Compulsorily convertible preference shares      

Outstanding at the beginning of the year   5,956,112   59,561,120    -     -

Issued during the year   -     -     5,956,112   59,561,120 

Converted to equity shares during the year  5,956,112   59,561,120    -     -

      

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  -     -     5,956,112   59,561,120 
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

2.1 Share capital (continued)

As at
31 March 2013

As at
31 March 2012

The details of shareholder holding more than 5% equity shares is set below:

Particulars No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding

The details of shareholder holding more than 5% of the 0.01% compulsory cummulative convertible preference share is set below:

Particulars No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding

Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microfinance

Development Co II Ltd. *

The details of debentureholder holding more than 5% of the 0.01% compulsory convertible debentures is set below:

Particulars No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding

* 0.01% compulsory convertible debentures were converted into equity shares during the year along with conversion of 0.01% compulsory 
convertible preference shares issued by the Company.      
       
Shares reserved for issue      
Certain existing shareholders of the Company are collectively entitled to subscribe upto maximum of three million equity shares at Rs.10 each 
within a period of three years from 14 December 2009,of which 1,250,000 equity shares have been issued as on 31 March 2013. The period has 
been extended upto 31 December 2013. 

Govind Singh                                                1,511,250  6.27% 1,511,250  14.79%
Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microfinance            
Development Company Limited  1,805,556  7.49% 1,805,556  17.67%
Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microfinance       
Development Company II Limited  5,743,100  23.82% 1,363,636  13.35%
International Finance Corporation                  3,757,824  15.58% 1,704,690  16.69%
NMI Frontier Fund KS, Norway                   6,602,978  27.38% -     -
  19,420,708  80.54% 6,385,132  62.50%

  -    -    600,000 100%

  -     -    600,000 100%   

NMI Frontier Fund KS, Norway                   -     -    4,952,978 83.16%

International Finance Corporation                   -     -    1,003,134 16.84%

   -     -    5,956,112 100%
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at
31 March 2013

As at
31 March 2012

2.2  Reserves and surplus    
     
 Securities premium account    
 At the commencement of the year   150,557,577    24,351,797 
 Add: On issue of shares during the year   198,886,679    130,438,880 
 Less : Utilised towards share issue expenses   252,509    4,233,100 
 Closing balance   349,191,747    150,557,577 
     
 Statutory reserve (created under Section 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934)    
     
 At the commencement of the year   4,648,737    1,821,028 
 Add: Transferred during the year   7,778,879    2,827,709 
 Closing balance   12,427,616    4,648,737 
     
 Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss     
     
 At the commencement of the year   9,137,712    (2,173,125)
 Add: Profit for the year   38,894,393    14,138,546 
 Less : Amount transferred to statutory reserve   (7,778,879)   (2,827,709)
 Closing balance   40,253,226    9,137,712 
     
 Total reserves & surplus   401,872,589    164,344,026 
     
     
2.3 Long-term borrowings    
     
 Secured    
     
 Term Loans    
 From banks*   542,844,467    106,273,813 
 From financial institutions*   74,584,535    14,851,954 
 From non deposit accepting financial institutions   60,416,663    15,166,667 
     
    677,845,665    136,292,434 
     
 *(secured by book debts and cash collateral, refer note 2.35 for terms of borrowings)

2.4 Other long-term liabilities    
     
 Unamortised processing fees   1,131,559    -   
     
    1,131,559    -   
     
2.5 Long-term provisions     
     
 Contingent provision on standard assets (refer note 2.23)   1,184,379    105,268 
     
    1,184,379    105,268 
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at
31 March 2013

As at
31 March 2012

2.6  Short-term borrowings    
     
 Secured    
     
 Working capital loan    
 From banks*    50,325,855    79,941,181 
     
 *(secured by book debts and cash collateral, refer note 2.35 for terms of borrowings)    
     
 Unsecured    
     
 Compulsorily Convertible Debentures    
 Nil (previous year 600,000) 0.01 % Compulsory Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100 each fully paid up  -      60,000,000 
 (Refer note 2.1 for terms and conditions)    
    50,325,855    139,941,181 
     
2.7  Other current liabilities    
     
 Current maturities of long-term debt (refer note 2.35)   1,123,071,798    312,825,246 
 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings   6,326,402    2,219,182 
 Interest accrued and due on borrowings   6,587,084   
 Payable on managed portfolio   57,785,691    31,955,283 
     
 Deferred income    
 Unamortized processing fee    10,023,050    3,300,817 
 Unamortised cash profit on loan portfolio   15,234,423    7,004,108 
     
 Other liabilities    
 Statutory liabilities   2,067,432    1,069,962 
 Salary and bonus payable   4,412,834    694,152 
 Security deposit from staff   4,019,860    2,579,368 
 Client insurance payable   2,928,149    383,391 
 Expenses payable   2,733,533    1,144,201 
    1,235,190,256    363,175,710 
     
2.8  Short-term provisions     
     
 Provision for employee benefits   1,370,472    1,118,562 
 Contingent provision on standard assets (refer note 2.23)   8,098,636    3,660,042 
 Provision on non performing assets (refer note 2.23)   2,550    22,597 
    9,471,658    4,801,201 
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at
31 March 2013

As at
31 March 2012

2.10  Loan portfolio    

  (Unsecured, considered good)    

     

 At the beginning of the year  753,084,510    318,557,242 

 Add : disbursed during the year   2,562,543,586    1,138,763,735 

    3,315,628,096   1,457,320,977 

 Less :  recovered during the year   1,533,088,301   704,236,467 

 written off during the year  21,290   -   

 Gross loan portfolio outstanding at the end of year*  1,782,518,505   753,084,510 

 Less : Managed portfolio outstanding at the end of the year  406,827,430   364,886,847 

 Loan portfolio outstanding at the end of the year  1,375,691,075   388,197,663 

 Less: Non current portion of the loan portfolio   205,118,445    20,737,783 

 Current portion of the loan portfolio   1,170,572,630    367,459,880 

     

 *Includes Rs. 2,040,874 (previous year: Rs. 4,710,902) towards additional collateral over and above the cash collateral provided in the form of  
 subordination of portfolio in relation to a securitisation transactions.    

 *Includes Rs. 2,437,113 (previous year: Nil) towards minimum retention requirement.     

2.11  Long-term loans and advances    

     

 Loans and advances to related parties    

 (Unsecured, considered good)    

 -  Advance to Utkarsh ESOP trust   21,647,819    3,445,070 

 -  Advance to Samutkarsh welfare services   500,000    500,000 

    22,147,819    3,945,070 

 Loans and advances others    

 Unamortised processing  fee on borrowings   5,322,720    999,620 

 Advance tax (net of provision for tax)   2,372,927    761,765 

 Prepaid expenses   310,489    42,406 

     30,153,955    5,748,861 

2.12  Other non-current assets   

     

 Long term deposits with maturity of more than 12 months*   129,807,216    95,666,558 

 Security deposits towards borrowings**   31,250,000    13,187,500 

 Interest accrued on fixed deposits   4,637,742    306,880 

     

    165,694,958    109,160,938 

  *Includes deposits of Rs.129,657,216  (previous year : 40,766,558) maintained as cash collateral against term loans availed and managed  
 portfolio    

     

 **Represents deposits maintained as cash collateral against term loans availed.    

     

2.13  Current investments    

 (Unquoted, valued at cost or fair market value whichever is lower)    

      - Investment in mutual fund units   507,333    1,031,370 

    507,333    1,031,370 
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at
31 March 2013

As at
31 March 2012

2.14 Cash and bank balances    
     
 Cash and cash equivalents    
 Cash in hand 963,449    446,635 
 Balances with banks    
 -  in current accounts 253,744,304    59,118,994 
 - demand deposits (with less than three months maturity)*  548,190,693    329,138,613 
   802,898,446    388,704,242 
 Other bank balances    
 Long term deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months** 184,349,442    41,371,462 
     
  987,247,888    430,075,704 
     
 *Includes deposits of Rs.17,714,286  (previous year : 54,000,001) maintained as cash collateral against term loans availed and managed portfolio.    
     
 **Includes deposits of Rs.95,921,558 (previous year : Rs.41,027,212) maintained as cash collateral against term loans availed and managed      
 portfolio.    
     
     
2.15 Short-term loans and advances     
  (Unsecured, considered good)    
 Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received  6,299,949    2,032,171 
 Rental deposits  383,200    404,735 
 Unamortized processing fee on borrowings 10,458,209    4,334,148 
 Services tax receivable   1,291,995    458,969 
 Prepaid expenses  857,384    279,666 
   19,290,737    7,509,689 
     
     
2.16 Other current assets    
 Security deposits towards borrowings*  13,187,500    14,750,000 
 Interest accrued but not due on loan portfolio  8,398,588    2,875,976 
 Interest accrued on fixed deposits  10,685,349    6,487,458 
   32,271,437    24,113,434 
 *Represents deposits maintained as cash collateral against term loans availed.
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Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at
31 March 2013

As at
31 March 2012

 FINO AR NC CI EM  PH VS TR . LA TK DT .U

2.17 Revenue from operations    
 Interest income on loan portfolio   241,632,969    89,457,931 
 Processing fee on loan portfolio   14,959,876    10,612,395 
 Income from asset assignment    22,168,337    16,759,574 
    278,761,182    116,829,900 
     
     
2.18 Other income    
 Performance based grant    5,423,250    -   
 Interest on fixed deposits    27,111,105    10,267,740 
 Dividend income from mutual fund units   854,254    1,006,888 
 Miscellaneous income   936,229    756,292 
    34,324,838    12,030,920 
     
     
2.19 Operating expenses    
 Printing and stationery   1,597,340    1,521,972 
 Communication expenses   1,155,809    534,509 
 Credit bureau expenses   533,722    241,156 
 Power and fuel   1,009,636    618,839 
 Provision on standard assets    5,517,705    2,172,524 
 Provision on non performing assets   1,242    22,597 
    9,815,454    5,111,597 
     
2.20 Employee benefits expense    
 Salaries, wages and bonus   78,999,070    48,916,523 
 Contribution to provident and other funds   7,712,742    4,935,897 
 Staff welfare expense   930,551    469,847 
    87,642,363    54,322,267 
     
2.21 Finance costs    
 Interest on borrowings   108,627,690    30,521,378 
 Other borrowing costs   20,134,241    4,677,353 
    128,761,931    35,198,731 
     
2.22 Other expenses    
 Rent (refer note 2.29)   6,219,890    3,876,847 
 Legal and professional charges   7,214,267    2,565,929 
 Traveling expenses   2,837,825    2,501,690 
 Auditors remuneration (refer note 2.36)   1,101,271    465,680 
 Repairs and maintenance   1,115,721    489,968 
 Office maintenance   1,027,582    442,600 
 Contribution towards social responsibilities   1,198,176    645,788 
 Recruitment expenses   641,095    211,880 
 Loss on account of theft and fraud   1,422,383    -   
 Loss on sale of assets   62,859    -   
 Insurance   587,175    229,289 
 Director sitting fees   16,000    -   
 Miscellaneous expenses   1,412,102    217,642 
    24,856,346    11,647,313 
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2.23 Provision for outstanding loan portfolio

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)

Standard portfolio 1,782,502,847 9,283,015 753,061,913 3,765,310

Sub Standard portfolio 15,658 2,550 - -

Doubtful portfolio - - 22,597 22,597

Loss portfolio - - - -

Total  1,782,518,505 9,285,565 753,084,510 3,787,907

Provision
Asset classification

As at
31 March 2013

As at
31 March 2012

Loan 
Portfolio

ProvisionLoan 
Portfolio

The movement in provision during the year is explained below:

2.24 Deferred tax, net included in the balance sheet

The deferred tax assets / (liabilities), net as at the year end comprises of:

Opening  3,765,310 22,597 3,787,907 1,592,786 - 1,592,786

Additions/

reversals, net 5,517,705 1,242 5,497,658 2,172,524 22,597 2,195,121

Written off - 21,289    

Closing  9,283,015 2,550 9,285,565 3,765,310 22,597 3,787,907

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2013

For the year ended
31 March 2012

Standard
Portfolio

Sub
Performing

Portfolio

Standard
Portfolio

Sub
Performing

Portfolio

TotalTotal

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities):  

On depreciation 145,323 (71,310)

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities), net 145,323 (71,310)

Particulars As at
31 March 2013

As at
31 March 2012
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Borrowings
from banks/
financial 
institution  

      59,781,090
 

        80,102,798 
 

       116,181,521 
 

  313,320,547
 

       604,011,782
  

674,595,580 3,250,000 -

 Advances 109,481,192 114,599,253
         

99,966,588 
       

323,209,482 
       

521,914,952 206,519,608 - -

      Investments 507,333 - - - - - - -

Particulars
2012-13  

1 day to 30/
31days 1

month 

Over 1
month upto
2 months    

Over 2
months
upto 3

months

Over 3
months upto  

6 months 

Over 6
months

upto 1 year   

Over 1 year 
upto 3 years 

Over 3
years upto

5 years   

Over 5
years

Particulars 2012-2013

I) CRAR %  42.36%

ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%)  41.75%  

iii) CRAR–Tier II Capital (%) 0.61%

b)   The Company does not have any direct or indirect exposure to real estate sector.
c)   Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities:

2.26  Earnings per share

Net profit for the year 38,894,393 14,138,546

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs.
10 each outstanding during the year–Basic EPS  

12,501,455 10,210,813

Add:Weighted average number of equity shares (issued
at par value of Rs 10) for nil consideration arising on
shares reserved for promoter group*

1,312,500

Weighted average  number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year-Diluted EPS    

13,813,955 11,325,447

Earnings per share of par value Rs. 10 each 

Basic earnings per share 3.11 1.38

Diluted earnings per share 2.82 1.24

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2013
For the year ended

31 March 2012  

1,114,634

* The promoters and individual shareholders had been given an option to subscribe to the equity share of the Company within next 3 years from 19 
December 2009 which has been further extended upto 31 December 2013. Refer note 2.1.

2.25  As required in terms of Paragraph 10 of Non-Banking Financial (Non Deposit Accepting or Holding)
   Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007:

a) Capital to Risk Asset ratio (CRAR)

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)
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2.27  Gratuity amount recognition
 The following tables set out the status of the gratuity plan as required under AS 15 (Revised)

Gratuity liability for the current year has been estimated based on actuarial valuation under defined contribution plan An amount 
of Rs 1,306,054 (previous year: Rs. 677,522) has been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the current year.

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)
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For the year ended
31 March 2013 

A. Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 1,242,542 552,499 

 Current Service cost     1,326,400   769,785

 Actuarial gain/ loss      (19,984) (79,742)

 Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year  2,548,958 1,242,542

B. Amount recognised in the balance sheet  

 Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year   2,548,958 1,242,542

 Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  1,897,888 844,358

 Net liability / (asset)     651,070 398,184

C. Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss  

 i) Current Service cost   1,207,322 646,725

 ii) Risk Premium    98,732 30,797

 iii) Amount included in personnelcost  1,306,054 677,522

D. Category of assets  

  Insurer managed funds  

Particulars 
For the year ended

31 March 2012

Particulars 
For the year ended

31 March 2013 
For the year ended

31 March 2012

E. Principal actuarial assumptions  

 i) Discount rate (p.a)    8%      8%

 ii) Expected return on plan asset  8%   8%

 iii) Salary escalation rate (p.a)   7%   7%



FIN O AR NC CI EM  PH VS TR . LA TK DT .U

1. Number of SPVs sponsored by the Company for

securitisation / bilateral transactions 14  7

2. Total amount of securitised assets as per books of

the SPVs/assignees sponsored by the Company 795,880,758 576,944,281

3. Total amount of exposures retained by the

Company to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet

Particulars 
Number / Amount in Rs. 

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

 

2.28 Segmental Reporting
 The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. micro lending to members, who have similar risk and  returns for the 
purpose  of AS-17 on ‘segmental reporting’ issued by ICAI. The Company does not have any  reportable geographical segment.

2.29 Operating Leases
 Lease payments made under cancellable operating lease amounting to Rs. 6,219,890 (previous year: Rs 3,876,847) disclosed as rent and 
 the same have been recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Nature of fraud   Amount of fraud Recovery   Amount written off

Misappropriation of cash bya

employees   1,262,360 274,000  988,360

Total    1,262,360 274,000  988,360

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)

2.31 As required in terms of circular RBI//2012-13/170 DNBS. PD. No. 301/3.10.01/2012-13 dated 21 August 2012:
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a) Off-balance sheet exposures   

* First loss  -  -

* Others

b) On-balance sheet exposures  

* First loss 84,373,058 57,101,663

* Others  2,437,095 -

4. Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR   

a) Off-balance sheet exposures   

i) Exposure to own securitisations   

* First loss  -  -

* loss  -  -



 FINO AR NC CI EM  PH VS TR . LA TK DT .U

1 Development Credit Bank  39,639,478 4,000,000 10% * 79,939,601 8,000,000 10% *

2 Dhanlaxmi Bank   101,887,164 5,094,358 5% * 101,887,164 5,094,358 5% *

3 IFMR Capital Mosec IV  - - - 102,930,465 11,922,200 12.5%+

4 IFMR Capital Mosec VII  - - - 88,056,716 9,940,700 12%+

5 IFMR Capital Mosec X  - - - 115,144,765 12,722,600 11.75%+

6 IFMR Capital AUGE  - - - 89,507,159 9,421,805 10% +

7 IFMR Capital Mosec XV  75,691,990 9,479,758 13%+ - - -

8 IFMR Capital Mosec XVI  82,280,469 10,342,737 13.25%+ - - -

9 IFMR Capital Mosec XVII  42,109,723 5,358,530 13.25%+ - - -

10 IFMR Capital Mosec XVIII  25,686,627 3,124,821 12.75%+ - - -

11 IFMR Capital Mosec XX  25,142,050 2,947,277 12.25% + - - -

12 IFMR Capital Mosec XXI  107,986,161 11,787,646 11.5% + - - -

13 IFMR Capital Mosec XXII  42,627,164 4,952,490 11% # - - -

14 IFMR Capital Mosec XXIII  40,908,111 4,572,820 11.75% + - - -

15 IFMR Capital Mosec XXVIII  79,936,276 8,326,724 11% + - - -

16 IFMR Capital Mosec XXX  50,671,658 6,285,897 11.8%# - - -

17 IFMR Capital Mosec XXXII  64,806,752 8,100,000 11.8%# - - -

 Total    779,373,623 84,373,058  577,465,870 57,101,663 

S.No Bank/FI 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Purchase
Consideration 

Contingent 
Liability 

FLDG
%   

Purchase
Consideration 

Contingent
Liability  

FLDG
%

2.32 Contingent Liability :
 Guarantees given on assigned portfolio

* of purchase consideration
+ of pool principal 
# of pool receivable

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)
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ii) Exposure to third party securitisations    

* First loss  -  -

* Others  -  -

b) On-balance sheet exposures    

i) Exposure to own securitisations    

* First loss  -  -

* Others  -  -

ii) Exposure to third party securitisations    

* First loss  -  -

* Others  -  -



Annual Report 2012-201366

Audited Financial

FIN O AR NC CI EM  PH VS TR . LA TK DT .U

2.33   Related party disclosure
 1  List of related parties
 a) Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microfinance Development Company II Limited (AGIMDC II) – Enterprise having    

 significant influence. 
 b) NMI Frontier Fund KS, Norway - Enterprise having significant influence.                  
 c) Samutkarsh Welfare Services – Enterprise where significant influence exists
 d) Utkarsh ESOP Trust – Enterprise where significant influence exists

 2  Key Managerial Personnel
 a) Govind Singh  Managing Director & CEO
 b) Trilok Nath Shukla  Whole-time Director

2.34   Related party transactions

 S.No.
 Name of the
related Party

 Nature of 
transactions

 31 March 2013  31 March 2012

 Transactions  Receivable
/ (Payable)

 Transactions  Receivable
/ (Payable)

 1 Utkarsh
ESOP Trust

Interest free
loan given (net) 18,202,749 21,647,819 10,000 3,445,070

1,198,176 (1043,964) 665,161 (615,161)

60,000,000 - - -

91,584,000 - - -

66,000,000 - - -

15,80,00,000 - - -

4,347,108 - 3,474,312 -

1,929,772 - 1,446,777 -

 2 Contribution
given as % of
profit after 
tax

Samutkarsh
Welfare
Services

Issue of equity
shares

4 AGIMDC II

5 NMI Frontier
Fund KS,
Norway

Issue of
equity shares

6 NMI Frontier
Fund KS,
Norway

Issue of equity
 shares out
of conversion 
of CCCPS

7 Govind Singh Managerial
remuneration

8
 Trilok Nath

Shukla

Managerial
remuneration

Issue of equity
shares out of
conversion
of CCDs

3 AGIMDC II

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)
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2.35 Terms of the borrowings
a. Following are the details of certain pertinent terms of the borrowings for the year ended 31 March 2013: 

Nature of 
Facility

Amount outstanding First 
repayment 
date

Period of repayment/ 
Number of

installments 
Current maturity Long term maturity

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)

Term loan 1 4,000,000 -  21 June 2012   Quarterly/5

Term loan 2 37,500,000 9,375,000 1 Mar 2013 Monthly/16

Term loan 3 24,000,000 6,000,000 25 Apr 2013 Monthly/15

Term loan 4 3,335,208 1,111,111 28 Feb 2013 Monthly/18

Term loan 5 22,916,669 - 30 Sep 2012 Monthly/18

Term loan 6 30,000,000 10,000,000 28 Feb 2013 Monthly/18

Term loan 7 42,777,768 27,222,232 31 May 2013 Monthly/18

Term loan 8 36,912,310 24,308,339 01 Nov 2012 Monthly/24

Term loan 9 1,000,000 4,000,000 01 Oct 2013 Yearly/5

Term loan 10 18,181,818 31,818,182 30 Apr 2014 Monthly/11

Term loan 11 2,666,671 - 13 Mar 2012 Monthly/15

Term loan 12 5,333,333 - 20 Mar 2012 Monthly/15

Term loan 13 5,833,333 - 30 Apr 2012 Monthly/18

Term loan 14 25,000,000 6,250,000 28 July 2012 Monthly/24

Term loan 15 50,000,000 16,666,667 24 Aug 2012 Monthly/24

Term loan 16 25,000,000 12,500,000 10 Oct 2012 Monthly/24

Term loan 17 25,000,000 25,000,000 10 Apr 2013 Monthly/24

Term loan 18 4,851,945 - 29 Feb 2012 Monthly/18

Term loan 19 10,000,000 - 30 June 2012 Quarterly/5

Term loan 20 100,000,000 - 28 May 2013 Quarterly/4

Term loan 21 10,000,000 - 30 Jun 2012 Quarterly/5

Term loan 22 42,857,143 - 22 Sep 2012 Quarterly/7

Term loan 23 57,142,857 42,857,143 22 Apr 2013 Quarterly/7

Term loan 24 57,142,857 42,857,143 22 June 2013 Quarterly/7

Term loan 25 5,000,000 11,250,000 22 Sep 2012 Quarterly/42

Term loan 26 24,999,987 2,083,341 23 May 2012 Monthly/24
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Working 
capital
demand loan* 

45,903,264
Repayable on
\demand 

Repayable on
demand

Working
capital
demand loan#  

4,422,591
Repayable on
demand 

Repayable on
demand

_

Nature of 
Facility

Amount outstanding First 
repayment 
date

Period of repayment/ 
Number of

installments 
Current maturity Long term maturity

* Secured against fixed deposits. 
# Secured against book debts
Note:   All term loans are secured against first pari passu charge on the standard assets portfolio receivables pertaining to micro credit loans. Interest rates on the          

above term and other loans fall in between a minimum of 3.5% and a maximum of 16.75%.

 

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)
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_

Term loan 27 71,428,571 78,571,429 14 June 2013 Monthly/21

Term loan 28 23,407,979 24,438,708 19 Dec 2012 Monthly/27

Term loan 29 17,646,985 4,411,845 27 Feb 2013 Monthly/17

Term loan 30 37,500,000 9,375,000 27 Mar 2013 Monthly/16

Term loan 31 16,668,000 33,332,000 10 Apr 2013 Monthly/36

Term loan 32 1,333,333 - 30 Jan 2012 Monthly/15

Term loan 33 20,000,000 - 30 Jan 2013 Quarterly/2

Term loan 34 - 20,000,000 30 Apr 2014 1 Bullet payment

Term loan 35 26,666,667 8,888,889 06 Apr 2013 Monthly/18

Term loan 36 40,000,000 20,000,000 08 Sep 2012 Quarterly/34

Term loan 37 23,332,000 29,165,000 31 May 2013 Quarterly/8

Term loan 38 25,000,000 25,000,000 31 July 2013 Monthly/30

Term loan 39 30,000,000 70,000,000 30 June 2013 Monthly/12

Term loan 40 85,000,000 15,000,000 30 Sep 2013 Quarterly/11

Term loan 41 13,636,364 36,363,636 25 June 2013 Quarterly/10

Term loan 42 20,000,000 30,000,000 30 April 2013 Quarterly/10

TOTAL  1,173,397,653  677,845,665



Term loan 1 6,666,665  -  12 Apr 2012 Monthly/5

Term loan 2        8,000,000    - 20 Apr 2012 Monthly/6

Term loan 3 13,333,334        13333,334    2 Apr 2012 Monthly/8

Term loan 4 13,333,334 -  16 Apr 2012 Monthly/8

Term loan 5 14,666,668 - 28 Apr 2012 Monthly/11

Term loan 6 15,999,996 1,333,338 24 Apr 2012 Monthly/13

Term loan 7 15,999,997 2,666,671 13 Apr 2012 Monthly/14

Term loan 8 32,000,000 5,333,334 20 Apr 2012 Monthly/14

Term loan 9 11,666,667 5,833,333 30 Apr 2012 Monthly/18

Term loan 10 5,053,733 - 26 Apr 2012 Monthly/8

Term loan 11 555,548 - 30 Apr 2012 Monthly/1

Term loan 12 1,669,967 - 30 Apr 2012 Monthly/2

Term loan 13 1,666,660 - 30 Apr 2012 Monthly/3

Term loan 14 3,333,332 - 30 Apr 2012 Monthly/12

Term loan 15 1,000,000 4,000,000 10 Jan 2013 Annual/5

Term loan 16 20,833,330 29,166,670 1 Jun 2012 Monthly/24

Term loan 17 40,000,000 10,000,000 30 Jun 2012 Quarterly/5

Term loan 18 32,142,857 42,857,143 22 Sep 2012 Quarterly/7

Term loan 19 12,857,145 - 30 April 2012 Monthly/9

Term loan 20 19,148,946 - 29 April 2012 Monthly/11

Term loan 21 13,147,067 4,851,945 29 April 2012 Monthly/16

Term loan 22 10,000,000 10,000,000 15 Jan 2013 Quarterly/2

Term loan 23 16,000,000 4,000,000 21 Jun 2012 Quarterly/5

Term loan 24 3,750,000 16,250,000 29 Sep 2012 Quarterly/16

TOTAL  392,766,427 136,292,434  

 FINO AR NC CI EM  PH VS TR . LA TK DT .U

Nature of 
Facility

Amount outstanding First 
repayment 
date

Period of repayment/ 
Number of

installments 
Current maturity Long term maturity

Working 
capital
demand loan* 

79,941,181
Repayable on
demand 

Repayable on
demand

_

* Secured against fixed deposits. 
Note:   All term loans are secured against first pari passu charge on the standard assets portfolio receivables pertaining to micro credit loans. Interest rates on the 

above term and other loans fall in between a minimum of 3.5% and a maximum of 16.75%.

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)

b. Following are the details of certain pertinent terms of the borrowings for the year ended 31 March 2012
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Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2013
For the year ended

31 March 2012

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year. Nil Nil

The amount of interest paid by the Company along with the amounts
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during the year. Nil Nil

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in

making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
this act. Nil Nil

 

2.36  Auditors Remuneration

2.37 Amounts payable to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises
The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum  dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the 
Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allotted 
after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly,  the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2012 has 
been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in the view of the  
management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 is not expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act.

Audit fees 600,000 450,000

Other services 250,000 -

Reimbursement of expenses 251,271 15,680

Total 1,101,271 465,680

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2012
For the year ended

31 March 2011

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)
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The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of

the year; and Nil Nil

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in

the succeeding years, until such date when the interest due as above

are actually paid to the small enterprise. Nil Nil



2.38  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to current year’s
          classification.

As per our report attached

for B S R and Company
Chartered Accountants

 Firms Registration No.128900W

Zubin Shekary

Partner

Membership No: 48814

Place : Hyderabad

Date : 28 May, 2013

  Ajeet Kumar 
  Company Secretary

  Abhisheka Kumar   
Chief Financial Officer

  Trilok Nath Shukla
  Director

  Govind Singh
  Managing Director

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited
(formerly Shre Pathrakali Finance Company Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated.)
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OUR PARTNERS IN PROGRESS

Credit Bureau
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SYSTEMS PARTNERS

INSURANCE

LEGAL ADVISOR

CREDIT BUREAU
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PARTNERS
IN PROGRESS

UNIVERSAL LEGAL
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Regd. and Head Office : 

S-2/639-56, Varuna Vihar Colony 

J.P. Mehta Road, Cantt, 

Varanasi - 221 002, INDIA

Phone : 91-542-2282002

communications@utkarshmfi.com 

 www.utkarshmfi.com
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